
 
AGENDA 

City of Lucas  
City Council Meeting  

February 7, 2019  
7:00 PM  

City Hall – Council Chambers 
665 Country Club Road – Lucas, Texas  

 
Notice is hereby given that a meeting of the Lucas City Council will be held on Thursday, February 7, 2019 at 7:00 pm at Lucas City 
Hall, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas 75002-7651 at which time the following agenda will be discussed.  As authorized by 
Section 551.071 of the Texas Government Code, the City Council may convene into closed Executive Session for the purpose of seeking 
confidential legal advice from the City Attorney on any item on the agenda at any time during the meeting.  
 
Call to Order  
 

• Roll Call 
• Determination of Quorum  
• Reminder to turn off or silence cell phones 
• Pledge of Allegiance 

 
Citizen Input  
The Citizen Input portion of the agenda is an opportunity for the public to address the City Council on any subject.  By completing a 
“Request to Speak” form and submitting to the City Secretary, citizens have an opportunity to speak at the City Council meeting.  
However, in accordance with the Texas Open Meetings Act, the City council cannot discuss issues raised or make any decisions but 
may refer items to City Staff for research and possible inclusion on a future agenda.  
 
1. Citizen Input (Mayor Olk) 
 
Community Interest  
Pursuant to Section 551.0415 of the Texas Government Code, the City Council may report on the following items: 1) expression of thanks, 
congratulations or condolences; 2) information about holiday schedules; 3) recognition of individuals; 4) reminders about upcoming 
City Council events; 5) information about community events; and 6) announcements involving imminent threat to public health and 
safety.  
 
2. Items of Community Interest. (Mayor Olk) 
 

A. Presentation of Proclamation celebrating the City of Lucas’ 60th Anniversary.  
 
B. Discuss pending legislation that is being considered by the 86th Legislature and provide 

guidance to City Staff and City Attorney.   
  



 
Consent Agenda  
All items listed under the consent agenda are considered routine and are recommended to the City Council for a single vote approval.  
If discussion is desired, an item may be removed from the consent agenda for a separate vote.  
 
3. Consent Agenda:  

 
A. Approval of the minutes of the January 17, 2019 City Council meeting. (City Secretary 

Stacy Henderson) 
 

B. Consider adopting Ordinance 2019-02-00888 ordering a General Election to be held on 
May 4, 2019, for the purpose of electing two (2) City Councilmembers for Seat No. 5 and 
Seat No. 6; designating location of polling place; ordering notice of election to be given as 
prescribed by law in connection with such election; authorizing execution of joint election 
agreement; and providing for an effective date. (City Secretary Stacy Henderson) 

 
C. Consider adopting Ordinance 2019-02-00889 ordering a Special Election to be held on 

May 4, 2019, for the purpose of whether the City of Lucas Fire Control, Prevention and 
Emergency Medical Services District should be continued for 10 years, and the Fire 
Control, Prevention and Emergency Medical Services District sales tax should be 
continued for 10 years; designating location of polling place; ordering notice of election to 
be given as prescribed by law in connection with such election; authorizing execution of 
joint election agreement; and providing for an effective date. (City Secretary Stacy 
Henderson) 

 
Regular Agenda  
 
4. Consider the request by Anita Ahmadi of 2540 W McGarity Lane to install a gate on Allison 

Lane. (Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn) 
 
5. Discuss and authorize the City Manager to negotiate and proceed with agreements in an 

amount not to exceed $166,000 plus $34,000 in contingency for a total of $200,000 with the 
1) Texas Department of Transportation and 2) Birkhoff, Hendricks & Carter, LLP for the 
construction of a median opening on Parker Road to provide for an eastbound left turn to 
northbound Cimarron Trail and to fund the agreements using the General Fund Reserve 
Account. (City Engineer Stanton Foerster)  

 
6. Consider approval of the Amended Restated Development Agreement between the City of 

Lucas and Brockdale Community, LLC to fund future road improvements to Brockdale Park 
Road. (Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn) 

 
7. Consider and provide direction to the City Manager regarding future water reconstruction 

projects as identified in the City’s Capital Improvement Plan and by the City Engineer and 
evaluate possible funding strategies. (City Engineer Stanton Foerster) 

 
8. Consider and provide direction to the City Manager to request proposals for drainage 

studies/projects as identified by the City Engineer and evaluate possible funding strategies for 
the following areas:  Lemontree Country Estates, Kingswood Estates, Meadows, and the 
headwaters of Muddy Creek. (City Engineer Stanton Foerster) 

 
9. Consider nominations for the 2019 Service Tree Award Program. (Councilmember Fisher, 

Councilmember Duke) 



 
10. Review Articles I and II of the City Charter and provide direction to the City Attorney 

regarding any proposed amendments to be considered as part of a Charter update. (City 
Attorney Joe Gorfida) 

 
11. Consider appointing a Grand Marshal for the 2019 Founders Day Parade. (Mayor Olk)  
 
12. Consider approving Resolution R 2019-02-00479 accepting the voluntary annexation petition 

submitted by Cary L. and Sharon C. Cobb for a tract of land located in the Montogomery 
Birch Survey, Abstract A0115, Tract 19, being all of 10.696 acres of land, otherwise known 
as 2020 East Lucas Road. (Building Inspector Scott DeJong) 

 
13. Discuss future transportation projects, the 2018 Collin County Bond Program and Park and 

Open Space funding with Collin County Commissioner Darrell Hale. (Mayor Jim Olk, City 
Manager Joni Clarke)  

 
 
Executive Session Agenda  
Pursuant to Section 551.071 of the Texas Government Code, the City Council may convene into closed Executive Session for the 
purpose of seeking confidential legal advice from the City Attorney regarding any item on the agenda at any time during the meeting. 
This meeting is closed to the public as provided in the Texas Government Code.  
 
14. An Executive Session is not scheduled for this meeting. 
 
15. Adjournment.  
 
Certification  
I do hereby certify that the above notice was posted in accordance with the Texas Open Meetings Act on the bulletin board at Lucas 
City Hall, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, TX 75002 and on the City’s website at www.lucastexas.us on or before 5:00 p.m. on  
February 1, 2019.   
 
 

____________________________ 
Stacy Henderson, City Secretary 

 
 
In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, the City of Lucas will provide for reasonable accommodations for persons 
attending public meetings at City Hall. Requests for accommodations or interpretive services should be directed to Stacy Henderson at 
972.912.1211 or by email at shenderson@lucastexas.us at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. 



Item No. 01 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

February 7, 2019 
 

Requester: Mayor Jim Olk  
 
 
Agenda Item Request  
 
Citizen Input  
 
Background Information  
 
NA 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 
NA 
 
Budget/Financial Impact  
 
 NA 
 
Recommendation  
  
NA 
 
Motion  
 
NA 



Item No. 02 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

February 7, 2019 
 

Requester: Mayor Jim Olk 
 
 
Agenda Item Request  
 
2. Items of Community Interest.  
 

A. Presentation of Proclamation celebrating the City of Lucas’ 60th Anniversary.  
 
B. Discuss pending legislation that is being considered by the 86th Legislature and 

provide guidance to City Staff and City Attorney.   
 
 
Background Information  
 
NA 
 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 
NA 
 
Budget/Financial Impact  
 
NA 
 
 
Recommendation  
 
NA 
 
 
Motion  
 
NA 
 
 



Proclamation 
                  City of Lucas 

      60th Anniversary 
 
WHEREAS, February 19, 2019 marks the 60th Anniversary of the City of Lucas; and 
 
WHEREAS, in 1888, the first post office and general store was established by City namesake Gabriel Lucas, 
who was also named the first Postmaster, and from that time forward, the surrounding area was called Lucas; 
and  
 
WHEREAS, Lucas was home to several farming communities in the area, each having their own identity 
with stores, churches and community leaders. Those communities included Winningkoff, Forest Grove, 
Orchard Gap, and Stinson. All of which, have streets named after each community recognizable today in the 
City of Lucas. 
 
WHEREAS, the residents in the area wanted to incorporate their town, and O.E. Spurgin was listed as the 
official taking the petition with 31 signatures and a detailed survey of the area to the local judge to call for an 
election; and  
 
WHEREAS, on February 19, 1959 the Town of Lucas was incorporated and recognized by Collin County 
and the State of Texas with 49 votes in favor and 25 votes against corporation; and  
 
WHEREAS, in 1967 as Lucas was continuing to grow, the need for a water system was evident as residents 
were still providing for their own water. A loan was taken out by the town with each resident paying for water 
to come directly to their home, and a water system was developed from the newly completed Lake Lavon 
dam. Eventually in 1979 the Public Utility Commission of the State of Texas granted the Town of Lucas a 
Certificate of Convenience and Necessity to be the water provider for the area.  
 
WHEREAS, in June of 1973 Lucas Fire-Rescue was established by a group of 18 volunteers. This group of 
volunteers borrowed $1,200 and purchased a 1949 pumper engine affectionally called “Old Streaker” that was 
used to respond to fire calls.  Today, the Fire-Rescue Department responds to all emergency calls related to 
fire and emergency medical services with 15 career firefighter personnel and approximately 18 volunteers 
making up the department.  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Lucas has grown over the last 60 years into a unique community of almost 8,000 
residents, but still maintains its quality of life focused on family, a quiet country atmosphere, surrounded by 
beautiful trees, open space and equestrian trails.  
 
NOW THEREFORE, I, Jim Olk, Mayor of the City of Lucas, Texas, do hereby proclaim Tuesday, February 
19, 2019 as the CITY OF LUCAS 60TH ANNIVERSARY and urge all citizens to join in celebrating this 
special event.  
 
PROCLAIMED this day 7th day of February, 2019.  
 
 
_____________________________    ______________________________ 
Jim Olk, Mayor      Stacy Henderson, City Secretary  



Item No. 3 
 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

February 7, 2019 
 

Requester: City Secretary Stacy Henderson 
 
Agenda Item Request  
 
3. Consent Agenda:  
 

A. Approval of the minutes of the January 17, 2019 City Council meeting. 
 

B. Consider adopting Ordinance 2019-02-00888 ordering a General Election to be held 
on May 4, 2019, for the purpose of electing two (2) City Councilmembers for Seat No. 
5 and Seat No. 6; designating location of polling place; ordering notice of election to 
be given as prescribed by law in connection with such election; authorizing execution 
of joint election agreement; and providing for an effective date. 

 
C. Consider adopting Ordinance 2019-02-00889 ordering a Special Election to be held 

on May 4, 2019, for the purpose of whether the City of Lucas Fire Control, 
Prevention and Emergency Medical Services District should be continued for 10 
years, and the Fire Control, Prevention and Emergency Medical Services District 
sales tax should be continued for 10 years; designating location of polling place; 
ordering notice of election to be given as prescribed by law in connection with such 
election; authorizing execution of joint election agreement; and providing for an 
effective date. 

 
Background Information  
 
NA 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 
1. Minutes of the January 17, 2019 City Council meeting.  
2. Ordinance 2019-02-00888 Ordering General Election  
3. Ordinance 2019-02-00889 Order Special Election  

 
Budget/Financial Impact  
 
NA 
 
Recommendation  
City Staff recommends approval of the Consent Agenda.  
 
Motion  
I make a motion to approve the Consent Agenda as presented.  



1 | P a g e   C i t y  C o u n c i l  
  J a n u a r y  1 7 ,  2 0 1 9  

City of  Lucas 
City Council Meeting 

January 17, 2019 
7:00 P.M. 

City Hall - 665 Country Club Road – Lucas Texas 
 

MINUTES 
 
Call to Order  
 
Mayor Olk called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
City Councilmembers Present: 
Mayor Jim Olk 
Mayor Pro Tem Kathleen Peele  
Councilmember Wayne Millsap 
Councilmember Tim Baney   
Councilmember Steve Duke 
Councilmember Philip Lawrence 
Councilmember Debbie Fisher  
 

Staff Present: 
City Manager Joni Clarke  
City Attorney Joe Gorfida  
City Secretary Stacy Henderson 
City Engineer Stanton Foerster  
Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn 
Finance Director Liz Exum  
Assistant Fire Chief Lance Gant  

Mayor Olk determined that a quorum was present.  Everyone was reminded to silence their cell 
phones and the Pledge of Allegiance was recited.   
 
Citizen Input  
 
1. Citizen Input. 
 
There was no citizen input at this meeting.  
 
Community Interest  
 
2. Community Interest.  
 

A. Discuss pending legislation that is being considered by the 86th Legislature and provide 
guidance to City Staff and City Attorney.   

 
Councilmember Fisher noted that legislative session meeting schedule was posted online to view 
topics of discussion and proposed bills, and senate hearing meetings would begin the following 
week.  
 
Mayor Olk stated that noted that the City would be hosting Art in Public Places on January 31, 2019 
featuring art from area students that would be on display at City Hall.  Mayor Olk also noted that 
candidate filing for the May 4, 2019 election was taking place January 16 through February 15 with 
applications available from the City Secretary.  Mayor Olk also noted that the City would be having 
an open house on February 19, 2019 celebrating the City’s 60th anniversary from 5-7 pm.   



2 | P a g e   C i t y  C o u n c i l  
  J a n u a r y  1 7 ,  2 0 1 9  

 
City Manager Joni Clarke explained that the City was accepting items for the time capsule that will 
be part of the 60th anniversary celebration.   
 
Mayor Olk noted that April 6, 2019 the City would be hosting its Texas Trash Off cleanup event, 
and Founders Day was scheduled for May 11, 2019.  
 
Consent Agenda  
 
3. Consent Agenda. 

 
A. Approval of the minutes of the January 3, 2019 City Council meeting. 
 

MOTION: A motion was made by Mayor Pro Tem Peele, seconded by Councilmember Duke to 
approve the Consent Agenda as presented.  The motion passed unanimously by a 7 to 
0 vote.   

 
Regular Agenda  
 
4. Discuss the request by Anita Ahmadi of 2540 W McGarity Lane to install a gate on 

Allison Lane.  
 
Mayor Olk explained that the applicant, Ms. Ahmadi had requested this item be continued as she 
was unable to attend the meeting. The City Council was in agreement to table this request to the 
February 7, 2019 City Council meeting, or a meeting that was in agreement with the applicant.  
 
5. Consider authorizing the City Manager to enter into an agreement with Lakes 

Engineering for project management services for roadway and waterworks projects in 
the amount not to exceed $699,450.  

 
City Engineer Stanton Foerster explained that the proposal included construction engineering, 
inspection and project management services for the following roadway and water projects: 
 

• Stinson Road paving and drainage improvements 
• Blondy Jhune reconstruction 
• Winningkoff Road – Phase II paving and drainage improvements 
• Water system improvements to include single pressure plane facilities and the north pump 

station  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Peele asked for clarification if the proposal included funds for required testing of 
materials, and if a project manager would be on site every day.  
 
Mr. Foerster stated that the cost of testing was included in the overall price of the contract, but that 
testing would be completed by a third party, and Lakes Engineering would oversee the results and 
implementation. Mr. Foerster also explained that an engineer from Lakes Engineering would be on 
site every day overseeing the project and conducting inspections.  
 



3 | P a g e   C i t y  C o u n c i l  
  J a n u a r y  1 7 ,  2 0 1 9  

Councilmember Lawrence stated that having a project manager on site would benefit the City and 
help to mitigate risk associated with the project.  
 
Mayor Olk suggested that the contract proposal should be divided based on each construction 
project, thereby having a better accountability on funds being spent for each project. Mayor Olk also 
asked how funds would be disbursed if the contract was terminated.  
 
City Attorney Joe Gorfida stated that the contract would contain a termination clause with a 30 day 
notice that would require the City to pay only for the work performed to date provided it was 
satisfactory.  
 
Mayor Olk asked that the contract be broken out by project and task order by project, not as a lump 
sum agreement so the City does not lose any funds on a particular project.  Mayor Olk also wanted 
to ensure that an experienced engineer was on site overseeing the projects.  
 
Mr. Foerster explained the benefits of having Lakes Engineering as the project manager noting that 
they were a large firm that had other specialized engineers on staff that could provide additional 
expertise when needed depending on the situation.  
 
Councilmember Fisher asked when the project manager would begin. 
 
City Manager Joni Clarke stated that Lakes Engineering would begin upon the City issuing a Notice 
to Proceed on a project.  
 
MOTION:  A motion was made by Mayor Pro Tem Peele, seconded by Councilmember Millsap 

to authorize the City Manager to negotiate and enter into an agreement with Lakes 
Engineering for project management services for the following four projects 
including Stinson Road paving and drainage improvements; Blondy Jhune 
reconstruction; Winningkoff Road, Phase II paving and drainage improvements; 
and Water system improvements including single pressure plane facilities and the 
north pump station, in an amount not to exceed $699,450. The motion passed 
unanimously by a 7 to 0 vote.  

 
6. Consider implementing the findings from the City’s 2019 compensation market study.  
 
City Manager Joni Clarke stated that the goal of the market study was to recruit quality employees 
and maintain a quality workforce. Ms. Clarke stated that the methodology included calculating the 
market level with the benchmark cities and comparing actual compensation levels by position.  To 
be recommended for a market adjustment, the compensation of a specific position would have to be 
greater than 10 percent below market.  The benchmark cities used included Celina, Fairview, Fate, 
Melissa, Parker, Prosper, Sunnyvale and Trophy Club.  However, Sunnyvale and Parker were not 
used because they had no pay scales available.  
 
Ms. Clarke stated that the positions recommended for a market adjustment include:  
 

• Development Services Director  
• Finance Director 
• Fire Chief 
• EMS Officer 



4 | P a g e   C i t y  C o u n c i l  
  J a n u a r y  1 7 ,  2 0 1 9  

• Fire Captain 
• Firefighter/Paramedic  

 
Ms. Clarke explained that the annualized cost for all positions totaled $80,740 from the general fund 
and $4,608 from the water fund. Ms. Clarke stated that she would like to bring a future agenda item 
forward discussing the benchmark cities to be used and feedback on methodology. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Peele expressed the importance of conducting fair market salary studies and the 
need to recruit and retain quality employees; however, she did not want to use reoccurring funds 
from reserves to pay for the compensation market study.  
 
Ms. Clarke clarified and noted that any funds approved would be utilized from excess revenue over 
expenses.  
 
Ms. Clarke discussed with the Council the competitive market that existed for recruitment of Fire-
Rescue personnel.  The City currently had received only three applications for the 
firefighter/paramedic position available.  
 
Councilmember Lawrence stated that the City needs to remain competitive and should look at 
reviewing salaries every few years.  
 
Councilmember Fisher noted that she did not want the fire-rescue program to decline due to 
inadequate pay levels.  
 
Mayor Olk stated that he would like the Council to establish a methodology of comparative cities 
and create benchmarks as to where positions should fall within the market, and asked that these 
items be brought back before the Council for further consideration.  
 
MOTION:  A motion was made by Councilmember Millsap, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Peele, 

to approve the 2019 market compensation study that would require a budget 
adjustment. The motion passed unanimously by a 7 to 0 vote.  

 
7. Consider a City of Lucas Communication Policy.  
 
City Manager Joni Clarke stated that a communication policy was prepared to clarify the City’s 
communication efforts with timely and consistent responses.  
 
Councilmember Fisher asked if the policy directed referring emails to City staff regarding status of 
projects that Councilmembers may receive.  
 
Ms. Clarke stated that when the entire City Council gets an email from a citizen, currently the policy 
outlines that the Mayor will respond, and Ms. Clarke requested to be copied on those email 
responses as well. 
 
Councilmember Millsap suggested changing the following sentence under “Email and Text 
Messages”.  The sentence reads “If an individual City Council member receives a request for 
information, he or she should respond and copy the rest of the City Council and the City Manager.”  
Councilmember Millsap suggested that the sentence be changed to respond to the Mayor and City 
Manager only. 



5 | P a g e   C i t y  C o u n c i l  
  J a n u a r y  1 7 ,  2 0 1 9  

 
Mayor Olk stated that in that same section, it should also state that the City Council be allowed to 
request the City Manager respond to emails.  As written currently, the policy does not allow for that 
to occur.  
 
Mayor Olk also requested that in the section “Telephone Calls and Voice Messages” 24 hours be 
changed to one business day, and in the section titled “Written Correspondence” an amendment be 
made that states any correspondence sent, a copy be maintained in the City Secretary’s office.  
 
Councilmember Fisher suggested adding to the policy for emergency calls, to call the main number.  
 
City Attorney Joe Gorfida asked if a resolution was needed at the next meeting to pass the policy.  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Peele suggested making the document a guideline, no resolution was necessary.  
 
Councilmember Millsap stated that if the policy was changed to be referenced as guidelines then it 
no longer served its purpose of establishing criteria to be adhered to.  
 
MOTION:  A motion was made by Councilmember Fisher, seconded by Councilmember 

Lawrence to approve the Communication Guidelines with the amendments as 
discussed. The motion passed by a 6 to 1 vote with Councilmember Millsap voting in 
opposition.  

 
Executive Session Agenda  
 
8. Executive Session. 
 
An Executive Session was not held at this meeting.  
 
9. Adjournment.  
 
MOTION:  A motion was made by Councilmember Millsap, seconded by Mayor Olk to adjourn 

the meeting at 8:15 pm.  The motion passed unanimously by a 7 to 0 vote.  
 
APPROVED:       ATTEST: 
 
 
        ____________________________ 
Mayor Jim Olk       Stacy Henderson, City Secretary  



 
CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS 
ORDINANCE 2019-02-00888 May 4, 2019 GENERAL ELECTION 
Approved: February 7, 2019  Page 1 

 
 
 

ORDINANCE 2019-02-00888 
[Ordering the May 4, 2019 General Election] 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LUCAS, COLLIN COUNTY, 
TEXAS, ORDERING A GENERAL ELECTION TO BE HELD ON MAY 4, 2019, FOR THE 
PURPOSE OF ELECTING TWO (2) CITY COUNCILMEMBERS FOR SEAT NO. 5 AND 
SEAT NO. 6; DESIGNATING LOCATION OF POLLING PLACE; ORDERING NOTICE OF 
ELECTION TO BE GIVEN AS PRESCRIBED BY LAW IN CONNECTION WITH SUCH 
ELECTION; AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF JOINT ELECTION AGREEMENT; AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LUCAS COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Section 1.  A General Election is hereby ordered for May 4, 2019, for the purpose of electing 
two (2) Lucas City Councilmembers for Seat No. 5 and Seat No. 6, each such term being for a period 
of three (3) years.  The filing period for the General Election shall begin on January 16, 2019, and 
ends on February 15, 2019, at 5:00 p.m. in accordance with State Law. 
 
 Section 2.  Pursuant to the Joint Election Agreement, the Elections Administrator of Collin 
County shall serve as Elections Administrator for the election.  Presiding Election Judges and 
Alternate Presiding Election Judges appointed to serve the authorized polling places and the early 
voting clerk and deputy early voting clerks shall be those election officials furnished by the Elections 
Administrator from the list of proposed election judges as required in the Elections Services Contract.  
The City Manager and City Secretary are hereby authorized to execute an Elections Services Contract 
with the Collin County Elections Department for the General Election on May 4, 2019.  The City 
Secretary shall have further authority to approve any minor modifications as may be necessary in the 
best interest of the City. A voting system or systems meeting the standards and requirements of the 
Texas Election Code, as amended, is hereby adopted and approved for early voting by personal 
appearance and by mail and for election day voting. 
 
 Section 3.  Notice of the General Election shall be posted on the bulletin board used to post 
notice of the City Council meetings and be published in a newspaper of general circulation in the City.  
That said Notice must be published at least once, not earlier than the 30th day nor later than the 10th 
day, before Election Day as provided in Section 4.003(a)(1) of the Texas Election Code.  A copy of 
the published Notice that contains the name of the newspaper and the date of publication shall be 
retained as a record of such notice, and the person posting the Notice shall make a record of the time 
of posting, starting date, and the place of posting. 
 
 Section 4.  The entire City shall constitute one election precinct for this election and the Lucas 
Community Center located at 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas is hereby designated the polling 
place.  The election officers and maximum number of clerks for said polling place shall be determined 
and appointed in accordance with the provisions of the Contract. 
 



 
CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS 
ORDINANCE 2019-02-00888 - May 4, 2019 GENERAL ELECTION 
Approved: February 7, 2019  Page 2 

 On Election Day, the polls shall be open from 7:00 A.M. to 7:00 P.M. 
 
 Early voting by personal appearance shall also be conducted at the Lucas Community Center 
located at 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas.  City of Lucas voters may vote at any of the 
additional Early Voting locations open under full contract services with the Collin County Elections 
Administration. If the election services contract with the Collin County Elections Administrator 
revises the polling places listed previously, the City will utilize the polling places designated in said 
Election Services Contract, as the same may be amended from time to time. 
 
 Applications for ballot by mail shall be received and processed by the Collin County Elections 
Administrator, 2010 Redbud Boulevard, Suite 102, McKinney, Texas 75069.  Applications for ballots 
by mail must be received no later than the close of business on April 23, 2019. 
 
 Early voting for the General Election shall begin on Monday, April 22, 2019, and end Tuesday, 
April 30, 2019, and the dates and hours designated for early voting by personal appearance at the early 
voting locations shall be as set forth below: 
 

Dates Hours 
Monday, April 22, 2019 

Through 
Wednesday, April 24, 2019 

 
8:00 A.M. to 5:00 P.M. 

Thursday, April 25, 2019 8:00 A.M. to 7:00 P.M. 
Friday, April 26, 2019 

and 
Saturday, April 27, 2019 

 
8:00 A.M. to 5:00 P.M. 

Monday, April 29, 2019 
and 

Tuesday, April 30, 2019 

 
7:00 A.M. to 7:00 P.M. 

 
 For purposes of processing ballots cast in early voting, the election officers for the early voting 
ballot board for this election shall be appointed and designated in accordance with the provisions of 
the Contract. 
 
 Section 5.  The City Secretary shall present the General Election returns to the City Council 
at a Council meeting for the canvassing of said election in accordance with the Texas Election Code.  
The candidate for Councilmember Seat No. 5 and Councilmember for Seat No. 6 that receives a 
majority of valid votes by qualified voters at the election shall be declared elected.  In the event no 
candidate receives a majority of all the votes cast for all the candidates for an office, a runoff 
election shall be ordered by the City Council in accordance with the Lucas City Charter and State 
law. 
 
 Section 6.  This Ordinance shall take effect immediately upon its passage.  
  



 
CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS 
ORDINANCE 2019-02-00888 - May 4, 2019 GENERAL ELECTION 
Approved: February 7, 2019  Page 3 

 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Lucas this 7th day of 

February, 2019. 
 
 

      __________________________________________ 
      Jim Olk, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________________________ 
Stacy Henderson, City Secretary  
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
____________________________________________ 
Joseph J. Gorfida, Jr. 
 
 

 
 



 
CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS 
ORDINANCE 2019-02-00889 May 4, 2019 SPECIAL ELECTION 
Approved: February 7, 2019  Page 1 

 
 
 

ORDINANCE 2019-02-00889 
[Ordering the May 4, 2019 Special Election] 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LUCAS, COLLIN 
COUNTY, TEXAS, ORDERING A SPECIAL ELECTION TO BE HELD ON MAY 4, 2019, 
FOR THE PURPOSE OF WHETHER THE CITY OF LUCAS FIRE CONTROL, 
PREVENTION AND EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES DISTRICT SHOULD BE 
CONTINUED FOR 10 YEARS, AND THE FIRE CONTROL, PREVENTION AND 
EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES DISTRICT SALES TAX SHOULD BE CONTINUED 
FOR 10 YEARS; DESIGNATING LOCATION OF POLLING PLACE; ORDERING 
NOTICE OF ELECTION TO BE GIVEN AS PRESCRIBED BY LAW IN CONNECTION 
WITH SUCH ELECTION; AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF JOINT ELECTION 
AGREEMENT; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LUCAS COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Section 1.  A Special Election is hereby ordered for May 4 2019, for the purpose of whether 
the City of Lucas Fire Control, Prevention and Emergency Medical Services District (the “District”) 
should be continued for 10 years, and the Fire Control, Prevention and Emergency Medical Services 
District sales tax should be continued for 10 years.  
 
 The Proposition ballot language shall read:  
 
 “Whether the City of Lucas Fire Control, Prevention and Emergency Medical Services 

District should be continued for 10 years, and the Fire Control, Prevention and  
Emergency Medical Services District sales tax should be continued for 10 years.  

 
_____ For  _____ Against 

 
 Section 2.  Pursuant to the Joint Election Agreement, the Elections Administrator of Collin 
County shall serve as Elections Administrator for the election.  Presiding Election Judges and 
Alternate Presiding Election Judges appointed to serve the authorized polling places and the early 
voting clerk and deputy early voting clerks shall be those election officials furnished by the Elections 
Administrator from the list of proposed election judges as required in the Elections Services Contract.  
The City Manager and City Secretary are hereby authorized to execute an Elections Services Contract 
with the Collin County Elections Department for the General Election on May 4, 2019.  The City 
Secretary shall have further authority to approve any minor modifications as may be necessary in the 
best interest of the City. A voting system or systems meeting the standards and requirements of the 
Texas Election Code, as amended, is hereby adopted and approved for early voting by personal 
appearance and by mail and for election day voting. 
  



 
CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS 
ORDINANCE 2019-02-00889 - May 4, 2019 SPECIAL ELECTION 
Approved: February 7, 2019  Page 2 

 
 Section 3.  Notice of the Special Election shall be posted on the bulletin board used to post 
notice of the City Council meetings and be published in a newspaper of general circulation in the City.  
That said Notice must be published at least once, not earlier than the 30th day nor later than the 10th 
day, before Election Day as provided in Section 4.003(a)(1) of the Texas Election Code.  A copy of 
the published Notice that contains the name of the newspaper and the date of publication shall be 
retained as a record of such notice, and the person posting the Notice shall make a record of the time 
of posting, starting date, and the place of posting. 
 
 Section 4.  The entire City shall constitute one election precinct for this election and the Lucas 
Community Center located at 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas is hereby designated the polling 
place.  The election officers and maximum number of clerks for said polling place shall be determined 
and appointed in accordance with the provisions of the Contract. 
 
 On Election Day, the polls shall be open from 7:00 A.M. to 7:00 P.M. 
 
 Early voting by personal appearance shall also be conducted at the Lucas Community Center 
located at 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas.  City of Lucas voters may vote at any of the 
additional Early Voting locations open under full contract services with the Collin County Elections 
Administration. If the election services contract with the Collin County Elections Administrator 
revises the polling places listed previously, the City will utilize the polling places designated in said 
Election Services Contract, as the same may be amended from time to time. 
 
 Applications for ballot by mail shall be received and processed by the Collin County Elections 
Administrator, 2010 Redbud Boulevard, Suite 102, McKinney, Texas 75069.  Applications for ballots 
by mail must be received no later than the close of business on April 23, 2019. 
 
 Early voting for the Special Election shall begin on Monday, April 22, 2019, and end Tuesday, 
April 30, 2019, and the dates and hours designated for early voting by personal appearance at the early 
voting locations shall be as set forth below: 
 

Dates Hours 
Monday, April 22, 2019 

Through 
Wednesday, April 24, 2019 

 
8:00 A.M. to 5:00 P.M. 

Thursday, April 25, 2019 8:00 A.M. to 7:00 P.M. 
Friday, April 26, 2019 

and 
Saturday, April 27, 2019 

 
8:00 A.M. to 5:00 P.M. 

Monday, April 29, 2019 
and 

Tuesday, April 30, 2019 

 
7:00 A.M. to 7:00 P.M. 

 
 For purposes of processing ballots cast in early voting, the election officers for the early voting 
ballot board for this election shall be appointed and designated in accordance with the provisions of 
the Contract. 
 



 
CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS 
ORDINANCE 2019-02-00889 - May 4, 2019 SPECIAL ELECTION 
Approved: February 7, 2019  Page 3 

 Section 5.  The City Secretary shall present the Special Election returns to the City Council 
at a Council meeting for the canvassing of said election in accordance with the Texas Election Code.   
 
 Section 6.  This Ordinance shall take effect immediately upon its passage.   
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Lucas this 7th day of February, 
2019. 

 
 

      __________________________________________ 
      Jim Olk, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________________________ 
Stacy Henderson, City Secretary  
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
____________________________________________ 
Joseph J. Gorfida, Jr. 
 
 

 
 



Item No. 04 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

February 7, 2019 
 

Requester: Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn  
 
Agenda Item Request  
 
Consider the request by Anita Ahmadi of 2540 W McGarity Lane to install a gate on Allison 
Lane.  
 
Background Information  
 
Mrs. Ahmadi has expressed concern that other people are using her driveway to access the 
commercial tracts along Angel Parkway. Mrs. Ahmadi has access rights to a nonexclusive 
easement that has also been dedicated for public use as right of way for a future roadway.  
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 
1. Location Map 

 
Budget/Financial Impact  
 
NA 
 
Recommendation  
 
NA 
 
Motion  
 
I herby make a motion to approve/deny the installation of a gate on Allison Lane.  
 



Possible Gate Locations

Allison
Lane

McGarity Lane

Ahmadi Residence
2540 W McGarity



Item No. 05 
 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

February 7, 2019 
 

Requester: City Engineer Stanton Foerster 
 
Agenda Item Request  
 
Discuss and authorize the City Manager to negotiate and proceed with agreements in an amount 
not to exceed $166,000 plus $34,000 in contingency for a total of $200,000 with the 1) Texas 
Department of Transportation and 2) Birkhoff, Hendricks & Carter, LLP for the construction of a 
median opening on Parker Road to provide for an eastbound left turn to northbound Cimarron 
Trail and to fund the agreements using the General Fund Reserve Account. 

 
Background Information  
 
Consideration of a median opening and left turn lane along eastbound Parker Road to northbound 
Cimarron Trail was considered by the City Council in September of 2016.  The City Council 
decided at that time to not fund this project.   
 
Residents from Kirkland Estates requested an item be placed on the City Council agenda in 
September of 2018 to discuss the need for a left turn lane on Parker Road into Kirkland Estates. 
At that time, the City Engineer was directed to reach out to TxDOT to obtain pricing related to 
the cost associated with a left turn lane on Parker Road.   
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 

1. Birkhoff, Hendricks & Carter, LLP design proposal ($46,306) 
2. TxDOT Area Engineer Brenan Honey, PE email dated 01/29/19 ($17,000) 
3. Sinacola Construction Estimate ($102,315.06) 

 
Budget/Financial Impact  
 
At a minimum, this is a $165,621.06 unbudgeted FY 18-19 expense from the General Fund 
Reserve Account will be required to fund this project. 
 
Recommendation  
 
Based on general engineering practices and an evaluation by TxDOT, City Engineer Stanton 
Foerster recommends maintaining the September 2016 City Council decision to not fund this 
project.  
  



Item No. 05 
 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

February 7, 2019 
 

 
Motion  
 
I make a motion to authorize/not authorize the City Manger to negotiate and proceed with 
agreements in an amount not to exceed $166,000 plus $34,000 in contingency for a total of 
$200,000 with the 1) Texas Department of Transportation and 2) Birkhoff, Hendricks & Carter, 
LLP for the construction of a median opening on Parker Road to provide for an eastbound left 
turn to northbound Cimarron Trail and to fund the agreements using the General Fund Reserve 
Account. 





CITY OF LUCAS / BIRKHOFF, HENDRICKS & CARTER, L.L.P.  
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT – PAGE 1 

STATE OF TEXAS  § 
    § 
COUNTY OF COLLIN § 

 
AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

 
 This agreement for Professional Services (“Agreement”) is made by and between the City 
of Lucas, Texas (“City”) and Birkhoff, Hendricks & Carter, L.L.P., a Professional Engineering 
Firm (“Professional”), (each a “Party” and collectively the “Parties”), acting by and through their 
authorized representatives. 
 

RECITALS: 
 
 WHEREAS, the City desires in connection with the Cimarron Trail Left Turn Lane (the 
“Project”) to engage the services of the Professional as an independent contractor, and not as an 
employee, to provide the services described in Exhibit “A” (the “Scope of Services”) on the 
terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Professional desires to render professional services for the City on the 
terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement; 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, in exchange for the mutual covenants set forth herein, and other 
valuable consideration, the sufficiency and receipt of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties 
agree as follows: 
 

Article I 
Term 

 
 1.1 This Agreement shall commence on the last date of execution hereof (“Effective 
Date”) and continue until completion of the services, unless sooner terminated as provided 
herein. 
 
 1.2 Either Party may terminate this Agreement by giving thirty (30) days prior written 
notice to the other Party. In the event of such termination the Professional shall deliver to City all 
finished and unfinished documents, data, studies, surveys, drawings, maps, models, reports, 
photographs or other items prepared by the Professional in connection with this Agreement. 
Professional shall be entitled to compensation for any services completed to the reasonable 
satisfaction of the City in accordance with this Agreement prior to such termination.  
 

Article II 
Scope of Service 

 
 2.1 The Professional shall perform the services in connection with the Project as set 
forth in Exhibit “A”, Scope of Services. 

 
 2.2 The City shall, prior to commencement of services, provide the Professional with 
the information set forth in Exhibit “D”, if any. 



CITY OF LUCAS / BIRKHOFF, HENDRICKS & CARTER, L.L.P.  
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT – PAGE 2 

 
 2.3 The Parties acknowledge and agree that any and all opinions provided by the 
Professional in connection with the Scope of Services represent the professional judgment of the 
Professional, in accordance with the professional standard of care applicable by law to the 
services performed hereunder. 
 
 2.4 Upon execution of this Agreement the City has the right to use the Professional’s 
instruments of service for purposes of constructing, using, maintaining, altering and adding to the 
Project, provided that the City substantially performs its obligations, including prompt payment 
of all sums when due, under this Agreement. The City’s Project Contractor, Construction 
Manager, Subcontractors, Sub-subcontractors, and material or equipment suppliers, as well as the 
City’s consultants and separate contractors, may reproduce applicable portions of the instruments 
of service for use in performing services or construction for the Project.  Upon payment of all 
amounts due Professional hereunder, all materials and reports prepared by the Professional in 
connection with this Agreement shall become the property of the City. The City shall have the 
right to publish, disclose, distribute and otherwise use such materials and reports only for those 
purposes for which they were intended. Subject to the foregoing, Professional shall upon 
completion of the services, or earlier termination, provide the City with reproductions of all 
drawings, materials, specifications, reports, maps, and exhibits prepared by Professional pursuant 
to the Scope of Services. The reproductions shall include a compact disc containing all 
construction plan sheets in a “.dwg” format and a scanned 24” x 36” black & white “Tiff” images 
at 400 dpi resolution and in electronic format as requested by the City or required in Exhibit “A”. 
 

Article III 
Schedule of Work 

 
 The Professional agrees to complete the required services in accordance with the Project 
Schedule outlined in Exhibit “B”. 
 

Article IV 
Compensation and Method of Payment 

 
 4.1 Professional will be compensated in accordance with the payment schedule and 
amounts set forth in Exhibit “C” (the “Compensation Schedule”).  Unless otherwise provided 
herein, payment to the Professional shall be monthly based on the Professional’s monthly 
progress report and detailed monthly itemized statement for services that shows the names of the 
Professional’s employees, agents, contractors performing the services, the time worked, the 
actual services performed the rates charges for such service, reimbursable expenses, the total 
amount of fee earned to date and the amount due and payable as of the current statement, in a 
form reasonably acceptable to the City.  Monthly statements shall include authorized non-salary 
expenses with supporting itemized invoices and documentation.  The City shall pay such 
monthly statements within thirty (30) days after receipt and City verification of the services and 
expenses unless otherwise provided herein.  The final payment of the compensation shall be 
made after satisfactory completion of the services following the City acceptance of the design, 
and the submittal of “AS BUILT” drawings”, or record drawings as applicable. 



CITY OF LUCAS / BIRKHOFF, HENDRICKS & CARTER, L.L.P.  
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT – PAGE 3 

 
4.2 Unless otherwise provided in Exhibit “C” the Professional shall be responsible for 

all expenses related to the services provided pursuant to this Agreement including, but not 
limited to, travel, copying and facsimile charges, telephone, internet and email charges.  
 

Article V 
Devotion of Time; Personnel; and Equipment 

 
 5.1 The Professional shall devote such time as reasonably necessary for the 
satisfactory performance of the services under this Agreement. Should the City require additional 
services not included under this Agreement, the Professional shall make reasonable effort to 
provide such additional services within the time schedule without decreasing the effectiveness of 
the performance of services required under this Agreement, and shall be compensated for such 
additional services on a time and materials basis, in accordance with Professional’s standard 
hourly rate schedule, or as otherwise agreed between the Parties.  
 
 5.2 To the extent reasonably necessary for the Professional to perform the services 
under this Agreement, the Professional shall be authorized to engage the services of any agents, 
assistants, persons, or corporations that the Professional may deem proper to aid or assist in the 
performance of the services under this Agreement. The Professional shall provide written notice 
to and approval from the City prior to engaging services not referenced in Exhibits “A” or “C”.  
The cost of such personnel and assistance shall be included as part of the total compensation to 
be paid Professional hereunder, and shall not otherwise be reimbursed by the City unless 
provided differently herein. 
 
 5.3 The Professional shall furnish the facilities, equipment and personnel necessary to 
perform the services required under this Agreement unless otherwise provided herein. 
 
 5.4 The Professional shall submit monthly progress reports and attend monthly 
progress meetings scheduled by the City or more frequently as may be required by the City from 
time to time based upon Project demands.  Each progress report shall detail the work 
accomplished and special problems or delays experienced on the Project during the previous 
report period, and the planned work activities and special problems or delays anticipated for the 
next report period. 
 

Article VI 
Miscellaneous 

 
 6.1 Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the sole and only agreement 
between the Parties and supersedes any prior understandings written or oral agreements between 
the Parties with respect to this subject matter. 
 
 6.2 Assignment. The Professional may not assign this Agreement without the prior 
written consent of City. In the event of an assignment by the Professional to which the City has 



CITY OF LUCAS / BIRKHOFF, HENDRICKS & CARTER, L.L.P.  
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT – PAGE 4 

consented, the assignee shall agree in writing with the City to personally assume, perform, and be 
bound by all the covenants, and obligations contained in this Agreement. 
 

6.3 Successors and Assigns.  Subject to the provisions regarding assignment, this 
Agreement shall be binding on and inure to the benefit of the Parties to it and their respective 
heirs, executors, administrators, legal representatives, successors and assigns. 
 
 6.4 Governing Law. The laws of the State of Texas shall govern this Agreement 
without regard to any conflict of law rules; and venue for any action concerning this Agreement 
shall be in the State District Court of Collin County, Texas.  The Parties agree to submit to the 
personal and subject matter jurisdiction of said court. 
 
 6.5 Amendments. This Agreement may be amended by the mutual written agreement 
of the Parties. 
 
 6.6 Severability. In the event any one or more of the provisions contained in this 
Agreement shall for any reason be held to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, 
such invalidity, illegality or unenforceability shall not affect any other provisions, and the 
Agreement shall be construed as if such invalid, illegal, or unenforceable provision had never 
been contained in it. 
 
 6.7 Independent Contractor. It is understood and agreed by and between the Parties 
that the Professional in satisfying the conditions of this Agreement, is acting independently, and 
that the City assumes no responsibility or liabilities to any third party in connection with these 
actions. All services to be performed by Professional pursuant to this Agreement shall be in the 
capacity of an independent contractor, and not as an agent or employee of the City. Professional 
shall supervise the performance of its services and shall be entitled to control the manner and 
means by which its services are to be performed, subject to the terms of this Agreement. 
 

6.8 Right-of-Access. The Professional shall not enter onto private property without 
lawful right-of-access to perform the required surveys, or other necessary investigations.  The 
Professional will take reasonable precautions to minimize damage to the private and public 
property in the performance of such surveys and investigations.  Any right-of-access to public or 
private property shall be obtained in accordance with the Scope of Services. 
 

6.9 Notice. Any notice required or permitted to be delivered hereunder may be sent by 
first class mail, overnight courier or by confirmed telefax or facsimile to the address specified 
below, or to such other Party or address as either Party may designate in writing, and shall be 
deemed received three (3) days after delivery set forth herein: 
 



CITY OF LUCAS / BIRKHOFF, HENDRICKS & CARTER, L.L.P.  
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT – PAGE 5 

If intended for City: With Copy to: 
 
Attn:  Joni Clarke Joseph J. Gorfida, Jr. 
City Manager Nichols, Jackson, Dillard, Hager & Smith, LLP 
City of Lucas, Texas 1800 Ross Tower 
665 Country Club Road 500 North Akard 
Lucas, Texas 75002 Dallas, Texas 75201 
Telephone:  (972) 727-8999 Telephone:  (214) 965-9900 

       
If intended for Professional: 
 
Attn: Joseph T. Grajewski, P.E. 
Birkhoff, Hendricks & Carter, L.L.P. 
11910 Greenville Ave., Ste. #600 
Dallas, Texas   75243 
Telephone: 214-361-7900 

 
 6.10 Insurance. 
 

(a) Professional shall during the term hereof maintain in full force and effect the 
following insurance: (i) a comprehensive general liability policy of insurance for 
bodily injury, death and property damage insuring against all claims, demands or 
actions relating to the Professional’s performance of services pursuant to this 
Agreement with a minimum combined single limit of not less than $1,000,000.00 
per occurrence for injury to persons (including death), and for property damage; 
(ii) policy of automobile liability insurance covering any vehicles owned and/or 
operated by Professional, its officers, agents, and employees, and used in the 
performance of this Agreement with policy limits of not less than $500,000.00 
combined single limit and aggregate for bodily injury and property damage; 
(iii) statutory Worker’s Compensation Insurance at the statutory limits and 
Employers Liability covering all of Professional’s employees involved in the 
provision of services under this Agreement with policy limit of not less than 
$500,000.00; and (iv) Professional Liability covering negligent acts, errors and 
omissions in the performance of professional services with policy limit of not less 
than $2,000,000.00 per claim and $2,000,000.00 in the aggregate.  

 
(b) All policies of insurance shall be endorsed and contain the following provisions: 

(1) name the City, its officers, and employees as additional insureds as to all 
applicable coverage with the exception of Workers Compensation Insurance and 
Professional Liability; and (2) provide for at least thirty (30) days prior written 
notice to the City for cancellation of the insurance; (3) provide for a waiver of 
subrogation against the City for injuries, including death, property damage, or any 
other loss to the extent the same is covered by the proceeds of insurance, except 
for Professional Liability Insurance. The Professional shall provide written notice 
to the City of any material change of or to the insurance required herein.  

 



CITY OF LUCAS / BIRKHOFF, HENDRICKS & CARTER, L.L.P.  
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT – PAGE 6 

(c) All insurance companies providing the required insurance shall be authorized to 
transact business in Texas and rated at least “A” by AM Best or other equivalent 
rating service.  

 
(d) A certificate of insurance and copies of the policy endorsements evidencing the 

required insurance shall be submitted prior to commencement of services and 
upon request by the City. 

 
6.11 Debarment and Suspension. 

 
(a) In accordance with 2 CFR section 180.300, the principal of this contract as 

described in 2 CFR section 180.995 being duly sworn under penalty of perjury 
under the laws of the United States, certifies that neither this company, nor its 
principals are presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared 
ineligible or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any 
federal department or agency, the State of Texas or any of its departments or 
agencies. 

 
(b) If during the contract period the principal becomes debarred, suspended, proposed 

for debarment, declared ineligible or voluntarily excluded from participation, the 
principal shall immediately inform City of Lucas 

 
(c) For contracts that are financed by Federal or State grants, the principal agrees that 

this section will be enforced on each of its subcontractors and will inform City of 
Lucas of any violations of this section by subcontractors to the contract. 

 
(d) The certification in this section is a material representation of fact relied upon by 

City in entering into this contract. 
 

6.12 Indemnification.  CITY SHALL NOT BE LIABLE FOR ANY LOSS, 
DAMAGE, OR INJURY OF ANY KIND OR CHARACTER TO ANY PERSON OR 
PROPERTY ARISING FROM THE SERVICES OF THE PROFESSIONAL PURSUANT 
TO THIS AGREEMENT. PROFESSIONAL HEREBY WAIVES ALL CLAIMS 
AGAINST CITY, ITS OFFICERS, AGENTS AND EMPLOYEES (COLLECTIVELY 
REFERRED TO IN THIS SECTION AS “CITY”) FOR DAMAGE TO ANY PROPERTY 
OR INJURY TO, OR DEATH OF, ANY PERSON TO THE EXTENT ARISING AT ANY 
TIME AND FROM ANY CAUSE OTHER THAN THE NEGLIGENCE OR WILLFUL 
MISCONDUCT OF CITY OR BREACH OF CITY’S OBLIGATIONS HEREUNDER. 
PROFESSIONAL AGREES TO INDEMNIFY AND SAVE HARMLESS CITY FROM 
AND AGAINST LIABILITIES, DAMAGES, CLAIMS, SUITS, COSTS (INCLUDING 
COURT COSTS, REASONABLE ATTORNEYS’ FEES AND COSTS OF 
INVESTIGATION) AND ACTIONS OF ANY KIND BY REASON OF INJURY TO OR 
DEATH OF ANY PERSON OR DAMAGE TO OR LOSS OF PROPERTY TO THE 
EXTENT CAUSED BY THE PROFESSIONAL’S NEGLIGENT PERFORMANCE OF 
SERVICES UNDER THIS AGREEMENT OR BY REASON OF ANY NEGLIGENT ACT 



CITY OF LUCAS / BIRKHOFF, HENDRICKS & CARTER, L.L.P.  
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT – PAGE 7 

OR OMISSION ON THE PART OF PROFESSIONAL, ITS OFFICERS, DIRECTORS, 
SERVANTS, EMPLOYEES, REPRESENTATIVES, CONSULTANTS, LICENSEES, 
SUCCESSORS OR PERMITTED ASSIGNS (EXCEPT WHEN SUCH LIABILITY, 
CLAIMS, SUITS, COSTS, INJURIES, DEATHS OR DAMAGES ARISE FROM OR ARE 
ATTRIBUTED TO NEGLIGENCE OF THE CITY, IN WHOLE OR IN PART, IN 
WHICH CASE PROFESSIONAL SHALL INDEMNIFY CITY ONLY TO THE EXTENT 
OR PROPORTION OF NEGLIGENCE ATTRIBUTED TO PROFESSIONAL AS 
DETERMINED BY A COURT OR OTHER FORUM OF COMPETENT 
JURISDICTION). THE PROFESSIONAL’S OBLIGATIONS UNDER THIS SECTION 
SHALL NOT BE LIMITED TO THE LIMITS OF COVERAGE OF INSURANCE 
MAINTAINED OR REQUIRED TO BE MAINTAINED BY PROFESSIONAL UNDER 
THIS AGREEMENT. THIS PROVISION SHALL SURVIVE THE TERMINATION OF 
THIS AGREEMENT. 

 
6.13 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed by the Parties hereto in separate 

counterparts, each of which when so executed and delivered shall be an original, but all such 
counterparts shall together constitute one and the same instrument. Each counterpart may consist 
of any number of copies hereof each signed by less than all, but together signed by all of the 
Parties hereto. 
 
 6.14 Exhibits. The exhibits attached hereto are incorporated herein and made a part 
hereof for all purposes. 
 
Exhibit “A” – Scope of Services 
Exhibit “B” – Project Schedule 
Exhibit “C” – Compensation Schedule 
Exhibit “D” – Information to be provided to professional 
Exhibit “E” – Project Location Map 

 
6.15 Prohibition of Boycott Israel. Professional verifies that it does not Boycott Israel 

and agrees that during the term of this Agreement will not Boycott Israel as that term is defined 
in Texas Government Code Section 808.001, as amended. 
 
 

(Signature Page to Follow) 





 

Exhibit “A” 
Scope of Services 

 
CIMARRON TRAIL LEFT TURN LANE 

 
General Project Scope: 

Design of a left turn lane for Cimarron Trail from the eastbound lanes of FM 2514 (Parker 

Road).  The median opening for Lewis Lane to the west leaves approximately 300 linear feet for 

the transition and storage portions of the proposed left turn lane for Cimarron Trail. Please note: 

This will not comply with TxDOT design standards for this roadway classification and may not 

be approved for construction by TxDOT. 

The left turn lane design will include horizontal geometrics only and the profile will not be 

changed from the original TxDOT construction plans.  The roadway section will conform to the 

proposed section included with the Parker Road project.  A revised pavement marking sheet shall 

be created for the left turn lane. 

Street lighting plans, irrigation plans and landscaping plans shall be revised if found to be in 

conflict with the proposed left turn lane and associated median opening. 

Phase 1 Services:  

A. Horizontal pavement layout for left turn lane and median opening at Cimarron 
Trail on Parker Road 

B. Pavement striping and marking plans for left turn lane 

C. Coordination with TxDOT 

Phase 2 Services:  

A. Street Lighting Plan revisions 

B. Irrigation Plan revisions 

C. Landscaping Plan revisions 

D. Prepare quantity estimates from existing pay items  

E. Plotting & Reproduction 

 



 

Exclusions: 

The intent of this scope of services is to include only the services specifically listed herein and 

none others.  Services specifically excluded from this scope of services include, but are not 

necessarily limited to the following: 

A. Field Surveys 

B. Preparation of Technical Specifications, Bidding and Contract Documents 

C. Bidding Phase Services 

D. Construction Phase Services 

E. Fiduciary Responsibility to the City 

F. Consulting services by others not included in proposal 

G. Geotechnical Design 

H. Traffic Control or Construction Phasing 

I. Design or Revisions to Roadway Profile Grade 

J. Traffic engineering report or study 



 

Exhibit “B” 
Project Schedule 

 
CIMARRON TRAIL LEFT TURN LANE 

 

Horizontal Left Turn Lane Preliminary Plans   .........................  4 Weeks after Notice to Proceed 

Street Lighting, Irrigation & Landscaping Plans   .....................  12 Weeks after Notice to Proceed 

Submit Plans to TxDOT ...........................................................  12 Weeks after Notice to Proceed 

Submit Final Plans ....................................................................  2 Weeks after TxDOT Review  



 

Exhibit “C” 
Compensation Schedule 

 
CIMARRON TRAIL LEFT TURN LANE 

 
Payment for the Scope of Services described under Exhibit “A” shall be compensated on an 

hourly basis following the 2019 Fee Schedule provided below. Expenses will be billed at actual 

invoice cost times 1.15.  Automobile mileage will be invoiced at the IRS limit. On this basis, a 

maximum fee of $46,306 for time, expenses and mileage shall not be exceeded without written 

authorization from the City, based on increased scope of services. Payments are to be made on a 

monthly basis based on the actual hourly expenditures. 

Phase 1 services will be completed and reviewed with TxDOT prior to moving into Phase 2 

services.  If the conceptual design is not approved by TxDOT, Phase 2 services will not be 

completed. 
2019 FEE SCHEDULE 

   

Staff:  Hourly Rate 

 Project Manager  $247.00 

 Design Engineer  $175.00 

 Electrical  $186.50 

 Engineer-in-Training  $130.00 

 AutoCAD III (Sr. Designer)  $169.00 

 AutoCAD II  $135.00 

 AutoCAD I  $90.00 

 Word Processor II (Sr. Processor)  $130.00 

 Word Processor I  $85.00 

 Survey Crew *  $170.00 

 Registered Professional Land Surveyor II  $254.00 

 Registered Professional Land Surveyor I  $167.50 

Copies and Expenses  Invoice Cost  x  1.15 

Mileage  IRS Rate 

Modeling Software  $125.00 /week 

 (Water, Sewer, AutoTURN)  $350.00 /month 
 

*   Plus Auto Mileage 



 

Exhibit “D”  
Information to be provided to professional 

 
CIMARRON TRAIL LEFT TURN LANE 

 
 

1. Final Construction Plans from TxDOT for FM 2514 (Parker Road) 
2. Electronic CAD files (.dgn) from TxDOT 

 
 



 

Exhibit “E” 
Project Location Map 

 
CIMARRON TRAIL LEFT TURN LANE 

 

 









Item No. 06 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

February 7, 2019 
 

Requester: Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn  
 
Agenda Item Request  
 
Consider approval of the Amended Restated Development Agreement between the City of 
Lucas and Brockdale Community, LLC to fund future road improvements to Brockdale Park 
Road. 
 
Background Information  
 
The original development agreement was approved on May 15, 2014 which collected $2,200 
per lot.  The amended agreement changes the amount to $4,400 per lot due to the increase in 
the cost of infrastructure; and therefore, requires an update to the development agreement.  
 
The Development Agreement also clarifies the type of minimum road improvements to be 
done: 
 

At a minimum, between Station 0+00 and Station 81+00, the City will cause to happen 
full depth reclamation with five percent cement stabilization at a depth of six inches 
and 22 feet wide. At a minimum, the final overlay riding surface will be two inches of 
Type “D” HMAC. 
 

Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 
1. Development Agreement 

 
Budget/Financial Impact  
 
NA 
 
Recommendation  
 
Staff recommends approval of the Amended Restated Development Agreement.  
 
Motion  
 
I herby make a motion to approve/deny the Amended Restated Development Agreement between 
the City of Lucas and Brockdale Community, LLC to fund future road improvements to 
Brockdale Park Road. 
  
 



1 
1560.019\78231.6 

AMENDED AND RESTATED DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

This Amended and Restated Development Agreement (this "Agreement") is executed 
between Brockdale Community, LLC (the "Owner") and the City of Lucas, Texas (the "City"), 
each a "Party" and collectively the "Parties," to be effective ________ ___, 2019 (the "Effective 
Date").  With respect to the Property defined below, this Agreement amends and replaces in its 
entirety that certain Development Agreement between the Parties effective May 15, 2014, which 
was recorded on June 10, 2014 in the Real Property Records of Collin County as Document No. 
20140610000583440 (the "Original Development Agreement").  Nothing herein shall amend any 
of the provisions of the Original Development Agreement as to phases 1 and 2 of the Brockdale 
development, and the Original Development Agreement shall remain in full force and effect as to 
such phases. The additional fees collected under this Agreement will fund upgrades to the Road 
Improvements contemplated by the Original Development Agreement to be constructed in 
accordance with Exhibit B to this Agreement. 

ARTICLE I 
RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the Owner owns the platted lots described on Exhibit A (the "Property"), 
which Property is located wholly within the extraterritorial jurisdiction (ETJ) of the City and;  

WHEREAS, the purpose of this Agreement is to provide funding for the reconstruction 
of Brockdale Park Road between East Lucas Road and the dead end of Brockdale Park Road into 
the Army CORP of Engineers property (the "Improvement Area") as described on Exhibit B to a 
level that is, at a minimum, the same as the specifications and standards used for the original 
construction of that segment of Brockdale Park Road (the "Road Improvements"), and to the 
extent funds remain after making such improvements, to provide for maintenance of Brockdale 
Park Road; and 

WHEREAS, the City intends to collect a roadway improvement fee with each building 
permit to fund the Road Improvements as further described herein, which the Parties 
acknowledge will benefit the Property; and 

WHEREAS, the Parties intend that this Agreement be a development agreement as 
provided for by Section 212.172 of the Texas Local Government Code; and 

WHEREAS, the Parties have the authority to enter into this Agreement pursuant to 
Section 212.172 of the Texas Local Government Code. 

NOW THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants of the Parties set 
forth in this Agreement, and for other good and valuable consideration the receipt and adequacy 
of which are acknowledged and agreed by the Parties, the Parties agree as follows: 

ARTICLE II 
BROCKDALE PARK ROAD 

As a condition to the issuance of a building permit after the Effective Date authorizing 
the construction of a residence on each lot, the permit applicant shall pay a roadway 



2 
1560.019\78231.6 

improvement fee of $4,400.00.  The $4,400.00 roadway improvement fee does not apply to 
any lot in which the City has already collected a roadway improvement fee prior to the 
Effective Date.  The City agrees to collect this fee with each building permit, deposit the 
revenue into a segregated, interest bearing account, and use the revenue from this fee for the 
sole purpose of making the Road Improvements, and if funds remain after completing the 
Road Improvements, for maintaining the segment of Brockdale Park Road within the 
Improvement Area.  The City agrees to commence the Road Improvements within 120 days 
after the date the City has collected the roadway improvement fee for the first 165 residences 
within the Property (as defined in the Original Development Agreement) and complete the 
Road Improvements no later than 270 days after the City has collected the road improvement 
fee for all 206 lots within the Property (as defined in the Original Development Agreement).  
If the City does not timely perform its construction obligation under this paragraph, then in 
addition to all other available remedies, the Owner may use the fees collected by the City 
under this paragraph and the Original Development Agreement to complete the Road 
Improvements. The Owner and all of the Owner's successors and assigns waive their rights to 
challenge the City's collection of the fees described in this paragraph.   

ARTICLE III 
ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS 

3.1 Recitals.  The recitals contained in this Agreement: (a) are true and correct as 
of the Effective Date; (b) form the basis upon which the Parties negotiated and entered into 
this Agreement; (c) are legislative findings of the City Council, and (d) reflect the final intent 
of the Parties with regard to the subject matter of this Agreement.  In the event it becomes 
necessary to interpret any provision of this Agreement, the intent of the Parties, as evidenced 
by the recitals, shall be taken into consideration and, to the maximum extent possible, given 
full effect.  The Parties have relied upon the recitals as part of the consideration for entering 
into this Agreement and, but for the intent of the Parties reflected by the recitals, would not 
have entered into this Agreement. 

3.2 Term.  This Agreement shall expire upon the City's completion of the Road 
Improvements or on the fifteenth anniversary of the Effective Date, whichever occurs first.  If 
this Agreement expires upon completion of the Road Improvements, the Owner may record a 
notice of the expiration in the real property records of Collin County.   

3.3 Events of Default.  No Party shall be in default under this Agreement until 
notice of the alleged failure of such Party to perform has been given and until such Party has 
been given ten days to cure the alleged failure. 

3.4 REMEDIES.  IF A PARTY IS IN DEFAULT, THE AGGRIEVED PARTY 
MAY, AT ITS OPTION AND WITHOUT PREJUDICE TO ANY OTHER RIGHT OR 
REMEDY UNDER THIS AGREEMENT, SEEK ANY RELIEF AVAILABLE AT LAW OR 
IN EQUITY, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, AN ACTION UNDER THE 
UNIFORM DECLARATORY JUDGMENT ACT, SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE, 
MANDAMUS, AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF.  



3 
1560.019\78231.6 

3.5 Assignment.  The Owner has the right (from time to time without the consent 
of the City, but upon written notice to the City) to assign this Agreement, in whole or in part, 
and including any obligation, right, title, or interest of the Owner under this Agreement, to any 
person or entity (an "Assignee") that is or will become an owner of any portion of the Property 
or that is an entity that is controlled by or under common control with the Owner.  Each 
assignment shall be in writing executed by the Owner and the Assignee and shall obligate the 
Assignee to be bound by this Agreement to the extent this Agreement applies or relates to the 
obligations, rights, title, or interests being assigned.  A copy of each assignment shall be 
provided to the City within 15 days after execution.  From and after such assignment, the City 
agrees to look solely to the Assignee for the performance of all obligations assigned to the 
Assignee and agrees that the Owner shall be released from subsequently performing the 
assigned obligations and from any liability that results from the Assignee’s failure to perform 
the assigned obligations; provided, however, if a copy of the assignment is not received by the 
City within 15 days after execution, the Owner shall not be released until the City receives 
such assignment.  No assignment by the Owner shall release the Owner from any liability that 
resulted from an act or omission by the Owner that occurred prior to the effective date of the 
assignment unless the City approves the release in writing.  The Owner shall maintain written 
records of all assignments, including a copy of each executed assignment and the Assignee’s 
Notice information as required by this Agreement, and, upon written request from the City, 
shall provide a copy of such records.  An Assignee shall be considered the "Owner" and a 
"Party" for the purposes of this Agreement. 

3.6 Binding Obligations.  Pursuant to the requirements of Section 212.172(f) of the 
Texas Local Government Code, this Agreement and all amendments hereto (including 
amendments to the Concept Plan) shall be recorded in the deed records of the County. In 
addition, all assignments to this Agreement shall be recorded in the deed records of the 
County. This Agreement, when recorded, shall be binding upon the Parties and their 
successors and assigns permitted by this Agreement and upon the Property; however, this 
Agreement shall not be binding upon, and shall not constitute any encumbrance to title as to, 
any owner (excluding the home builder) or occupant of a completed residence located within 
the Property.  

3.7 Estoppel Certificates.  From time to time upon written request of the Owner, 
the City Manager will execute a written estoppel certificate identifying any obligations of the 
Owner under this Agreement that are in default or, with the giving of notice or passage of 
time, would be in default; and stating, to the extent true, that to the best knowledge and belief 
of the City, the Owner is in compliance with its duties and obligations under this Agreement. 

3.8 Notices.  All  notices required or contemplated by this Agreement (or otherwise 
given in connection with this Agreement) shall be in writing, shall be signed by or on behalf of 
the Party giving the notice, and shall be effective as follows: (a) on or after the 10th business 
day after being deposited with the United States mail service, Certified Mail, Return Receipt 
Requested with a confirming copy sent by FAX; (b) on the day delivered by a private delivery 
or private messenger service (such as FedEx or UPS) as evidenced by a receipt signed by any 
person at the delivery address (whether or not such person is the person to whom the Notice is 
addressed); or (c) otherwise on the day actually received by the person to whom the Notice is 
addressed, including, but not limited to, delivery in person and delivery by regular mail (with a 



4 
1560.019\78231.6 

confirming copy sent by FAX).  Notices given pursuant to this section shall be addressed as 
follows: 

To the City: City of Lucas 
 Attn:  City Manager 
 665 Country Club 
 Lucas, Texas 75002 
 FAX: 972-727-0091 
 
With a Copy to: Joseph J. Gorfida, Jr. 
 Nichols, Jackson, Dillard, Hager & Smith, L.L.P. 
 500 N. Akard 
 1800 Ross Tower 
 Dallas, Texas 75201 

FAX: 214-965-0010 
 
 

To the Owner:  Attn: Kim Comiskey 
     3000 Turtle Creek Blvd. 

Dallas, Texas 75219 
     FAX: 972-201-2959 
 
 With a Copy to:  Attn: Misty Ventura 
     Shupe Ventura, PLLC 
     9406 Biscayne Blvd. 
     Dallas, Texas 75218 
     FAX: 800-519-3768 
 

3.9 Interpretation.  The Parties acknowledge that each of them has been actively 
involved in negotiating this Agreement.  Accordingly, the rule of construction that any 
ambiguities are to be resolved against the drafting Party will not apply to interpreting this 
Agreement.  In the event of any dispute over the meaning or application of any provision of 
this Agreement, the provision will be interpreted fairly and reasonably and neither more 
strongly for or against any Party, regardless of which Party originally drafted the provision. 

3.10 Authority and Enforceability.  The City represents and warrants that this 
Agreement has been approved by the City Council in accordance with all applicable public 
notice requirements (including, but not limited to, notices required by the Texas Open 
Meetings Act) and that the individual executing this Agreement on behalf of the City has been 
duly authorized to do so.  The Owner represents and warrants that this Agreement has been 
approved by appropriate action of the Owner, and that the individual executing this Agreement 
on behalf of the Owner has been duly authorized to do so.  Each Party acknowledges and 
agrees that this Agreement is binding upon such Party and enforceable against such Party in 
accordance with its terms and conditions and that the performance by the Parties under this 
Agreement is authorized by Section 212.172 of the Texas Local Government Code.  This 
Agreement is also a contract subject to Texas Local Government Code Chapter 271, 
Subchapter I. 



5 
1560.019\78231.6 

3.11 Entire Agreement; Severability.  This Agreement constitutes the entire 
agreement between the Parties regarding the subject matter of this Agreement.  This 
Agreement does not amend or waive any provision of that certain Settlement Agreement 
between the City and Brockdale Park Estates, Ltd. effective April 7, 2011.  This Agreement 
shall not be modified or amended except in writing signed by the Parties.  If any provision of 
this Agreement is determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to be unenforceable for any 
reason, then (a) such unenforceable provision shall be deleted from this Agreement; (b) the 
unenforceable provision shall, to the extent possible, be rewritten to be enforceable and to give 
effect to the intent of the Parties; and (c) the remainder of this Agreement shall remain in full 
force and effect and shall be interpreted to give effect to the intent of the Parties.  Without 
limiting the generality of the foregoing, (a) if it is determined that, as of the Effective Date, the 
Owner does not own any portion of the Property, this Agreement shall remain in full force and 
effect with respect to all of the Property that the Owner does then own, and (b) if it is 
determined, as of the Effective Date, that any portion of the Property is not within the City’s 
ETJ, this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect with respect to all of the Property that 
is then within the City’s ETJ.  If at any time after the Effective Date it is determined that any 
portion of the Property is no longer within the City’s ETJ, this Agreement shall remain in full 
force and effect with respect to all of the Property that remains within the City’s ETJ.  

3.12 Applicable Law; Venue.  This Agreement is entered into under and pursuant to, 
and is to be construed and enforceable in accordance with, the laws of the State of Texas, and 
all obligations of the Parties are performable in Collin County.  Venue for any action to 
enforce or construe this Agreement shall be Collin County. 

3.13 Non Waiver.  Any failure by a Party to insist upon strict performance by 
another Party of any material provision of this Agreement shall not be deemed a waiver 
thereof, and the Party shall have the right at any time thereafter to insist upon strict 
performance of any and all provisions of this Agreement.  No provision of this Agreement 
may be waived except by writing signed by the Party waiving such provision.  Any waiver 
shall be limited to the specific purposes for which it is given.  No waiver by any Party of any 
term or condition of this Agreement shall be deemed or construed to be a waiver of any other 
term or condition or subsequent waiver of the same term or condition. 

3.14 No Third Party Beneficiaries.  This Agreement only inures to the benefit of, 
and may only be enforced by, the Parties.   

3.15 Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, 
each of which shall be deemed an original and constitute one and the same instrument. 

3.16 Exhibit.  The following Exhibits are attached to this Agreement and 
incorporated herein for all purposes: 

Exhibit A Description of the Property 
Exhibit B Description of Road Improvements 

 

  [REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 



6 
1560.019\78231.6

Executed by the Owner and the City to be effective on the Effective Date. 

CITY OF LUCAS: 

Date Jim Olk 
City of Lucas, Texas 

ATTEST: 
________________________________ 
Stacy Henderson, City Secretary 
City of Lucas, Texas 

Approved as to Form: 

Joseph J. Gorfida, Jr., City Attorney 

STATE OF TEXAS § 
§

COUNTY OF COLLIN_________ § 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on _________________, 2019 by Jim Olk, 
the Mayor of the City of Lucas, Texas on behalf of said city. 

Notary Public, State of Texas 



7 
1560.019\78231.6 

OWNER: 
 
 
Brockdale Community, LLC 
 
       
Name:       
Title:       
Date:       
 
 
STATE OF TEXAS § 
 § 
COUNTY OF COLLIN_________ § 

 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on ______________, 2019 by 
___________, __________ of __________, a __________ on behalf of said __________. 

 
 
Notary Public, State of Texas 

 



 Exhibit A - Page 1 
1560.019\78231.6 

EXHIBIT A 
DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY 

 
All property within the Final Plat of Brockdale Estates Phase 3 recorded in the Real Property 
Records of Collin County on January 25, 2019  and all property within the approved Final Plat of 
Brockdale Estates Phase 4 recorded in the Real Property Records of Collin County on January 
25, 2019. 
 



 Exhibit B - Page 1 
1560.019\78231.6 

EXHIBIT B 
DESCRIPTION OF ROAD IMPROVEMENTS 

 
Permanent Pavement Plan 
 
The following is general specification for the roadway pavement and signage between Sta. 
0+00 and Sta. 80+00 without the benefit of any geotechnical information or knowledge of 
the existing roadway pavement construction: 
 

• The City will engage a licensed professional engineer to investigate the geotechnical 
information and develop a roadway pavement cross section within 60 days of the 
Effective Date.  Between Sta. 0+00 and Sta 50+00. The cross section will be at least 22 
feet wide and carry an average daily traffic volume of 20,000 vehicles. 
 

• At a minimum, between Sta. 0+00 and Sta. 80+00, the City will cause to happen full 
depth reclamation with five (5) percent cement stabilization at a depth of six (6) inches 
and 22 feet wide.. 
 
 

• At a minimum, the final overlay riding surface will be two (2) inches of Type “D” 
HMAC  
 

•  Between Sta. 0+00 to Sta. 50+00 an additional four (4) inches of Flex Base and two (2) 
inches may be require if supported by a geotechnical investigation. 
 
 

• All signage, pavement markings, and other ultimate and construction traffic control 
devices  shall be done and installed in accordance with the Texas Manual on Traffic 
Control Devices and as approved by the City Engineer.  

 
 

• The Owner may replace and maintain any City standard signage along Brockdale Park 
Road with approval of the City Engineer.  

 



Exhibit B - Page 2 
1560.019\78231.6 

 



Item No. 07 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

February 7, 2019 
 

Requester: City Engineer Stanton Foerster 
 
Agenda Item Request  
 
Consider and provide direction to the City Manager regarding future water reconstruction 
projects as identified in the City’s Capital Improvement Plan and by the City Engineer and 
evaluate possible funding strategies. 
 
Background Information  
 
In November 2018, the City Council adopted the Capital Improvement Plan (CIP).  Within this 
document is a tentative outline of projects by fiscal year: 
 
FY 16-17 and FY 17-18 
• Parker Road 12-Inch Waterline Phase 1 – Substantially Complete 
• Parker Road Six-Inch Waterline Phase 2 – Completed 
• North Pump Station Water Tower and Pump House – In Design 
• Automatic Flushing Valves – Completed 
• Meter Replacement – In Progress 
 
FY 18-19 
• Waterline Looping – Planning 
• Rollingwood Circle/Choice Lane/Lakeview Drive Six-Inch Waterline – Planning 
• Edgewood Lane/W. Lucas Road Six-Inch Waterline – Planning 
• Cedar Bend Trail/E. Lucas Road Six-Inch Waterline – Planning 
• Graham Lane/Rock Ridge Court Eight-Inch Waterline – Planning 
 
FY 19-20 
• Snider Lane Eight-Inch Waterline – Completed 
• Glencove Circle and Crestview Circle Six-Inch Waterline Extensions to Brockdale Park 

Road – Planning 
• Hickory Hill Street Eight-Inch Waterline – Planning 
• Manor Lane Eight-Inch Waterline – Planning 
• Rock Ridge Road 12-Inch from Estates Parkway to Fairbrook Circle – Planning 
• Fairbrook Circle Eight-Inch Waterline – Planning 
• Repaint McGarity 200,000-Gallon Ground Storage Tank – Planning 
• Enchanted Way/Brookhaven Drive Eight-Inch Waterline – Planning 
• Rock Ridge Road/Lovejoy High School Eight-Inch Waterline – Planning 

 
  



Item No. 07 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

February 7, 2019 
 

2020-2026 
• McGarity 950,000-Gallon Ground Storage Tank 
• Shiloh Drive/Toole Drive Six-Inch Waterline Replacements 
• Fairbrook Circle to Graham Lane Eight-Inch Waterline 
• Lewis Lane Eight-Inch Waterline from Shepherds Creek Drive to Green Acres Lane 
• Angel Parkway 12-Inch Waterline from McGarity Lane to Estates Parkway 
• Ingram Lane Six- and 12-Inch Waterlines from McGarity Lane to W. Lucas Road 
• Estates Road Eight-Inch Waterline 
• Chisholm Trail/Caman Park Drive and Turnberry Lane/Highland Drive Eight-Inch Waterline 

Loops 
• Stinson Road/Enchanted Way Eight-Inch Waterline 
• Stinson Road/E. Lucas Road Eight-Inch Waterline 
• Rock Creek Estates Six-Inch Waterline 
• Stinson Road 12-Inch Waterline Connector 
• Repaint North Pump Station 750,000 Gallon Ground Storage Tank 
• Repaint McGarity 350,000 Ground Storage Tank 
• Parker Road 12-Inch Waterline Phase 1 - Section 2 
• Parker Road/Brookhaven Drive Eight-Inch Waterline 

 
2026-2031 
• Replace McGarity 500,000 Gallon Water Tower 
• Rock Ridge Road 12-Inch Waterline from Exchange Parkway to Fairbrook Circle 
• Lakeview Downs/Trinity Park Six-Inch Waterlines and Eight-Inch Loop 
• Forest Grove Road/Horseman Drive/Orr Road Six- and Eight-Inch Waterlines 
• Orr Road (North) Eight-Inch Waterline 
• PR 5252 Six-Inch Waterline Replacement 
• Repaint North Pump Station 500,000 Gallon Ground Storage Tank McGarity 950,000-Gallon 

Ground Storage Tank 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 
NA 
 
Budget/Financial Impact  
 
A funding source has been identified by staff. 
 
  



Item No. 07 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

February 7, 2019 
 

Recommendation  
  
City Engineer Stanton Foerster recommends the funding of the design following in priority 
order: 
 
1. Waterline Looping $200,000 
2. Rollingwood Circle/Choice Lane/Lakeview Drive Six-Inch Waterline Loop (97 homes) 

$432,165 
3. Edgewood Lane/W. Lucas Road and Cedar Bend Trail/E. Lucas Road Six-Inch Waterline 

Loops (32 homes) $113,530 
4. Graham Lane/Rock Ridge Court Eight-Inch Waterline Loop (34 homes) $571,775 
 
Total estimate for construction stated in the CIP is $1,317,470.  The design fee estimate, based 
on the 10%-rule-of-thumb, is $132,000. 
 
Motion  
 
I make a motion to approve/deny authorizing the City Manager to proceed with requesting 
proposals for the design of the following CIP projects: 
 
1. Waterline Looping 
2. Rollingwood Circle/Choice Lane/Lakeview Drive Six-Inch Waterline Loop 
3. Edgewood Ln/W. Lucas R and Cedar Bend Trl/E. Lucas Rd Six-Inch Waterline Loops 
4. Graham Lane/Rock Ridge Court Eight-Inch Waterline Loop 



Item No. 08 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

February 7, 2019 
 

Requester: City Engineer Stanton Foerster 
 
Agenda Item Request  
 
Consider and provide direction to the City Manager to request proposals for drainage 
studies/projects as identified by the City Engineer and evaluate possible funding strategies for 
the following areas:  Lemontree Country Estates, Kingswood Estates, Meadows, and the 
headwaters of Muddy Creek. 
 
Background Information  
 
The FY 18-19 Work Plan identifies three priority drainage areas: 
• Lemontree Country Estates 
• McGarity Lane 
• Meadowbrook Area (Meadows Subdivision) 
 
Some of Lemontree Country Estates drains into the Kingswood Estates neighborhood.  With the 
unusually wet fall, the residents of Kingswood have been requesting assistance from the City.  
Lemontree and Kingswood neighborhoods drain to both White Rock Creek or one of its 
tributaries. 
 
Development continues along Angel Parkway, and drainage concerns are addressed with each 
development along and near McGarity Lane.  This area is the headwaters of Muddy Creek which 
includes an undetained 10+/-acre flow from the City of Allen across Angel Parkway. 
 
The culvert under Meadowbrook Drive parallel to Southview Drive was cleaned out by a 
contractor hired by the City.  The drainage along Meadowbrook Drive includes an undetained 
10+/-acre flow from the Town of Parker across Aztec Trail. 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 
NA 
 
Budget/Financial Impact  
 
NA 
 
Recommendation  
  
City Engineer Stanton Foerster recommends requesting proposals for drainage studies to mitigate 
poor drainage in the neighborhoods that were established without any consideration or design for 



Item No. 08 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

February 7, 2019 
 

drainage:  Lemontree Country Estates, Kingswood Estates, Meadows, and the headwaters of 
Muddy Creek. 
 
Motion  
 
I make a motion to direct (not direct) the City Manager to request proposals for drainage studies 
as identified by the City Engineer and evaluate possible funding strategies for the following areas:  
Lemontree Country Estates, Kingswood Estates, Meadows, and the headwaters of Muddy Creek. 



Item No. 09 City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

February 7, 2019 
 Requester: Councilmember Fisher, Councilmember Duke 

Agenda Item Request 

Consider nominations for the 2019 Service Tree Award Program. 

Background Information  

The Service Tree nomination applications were open and posted on the City’s website from 
October 10, 2018 through January 31, 2019.  The City Secretary’s office received four 
nominations that were shared with the Service Tree Committee consisting of Councilmember 
Fisher and Councilmember Duke.  

Service Tree nominations were received for the below mentioned individuals and the Committee 
will provide a recommendation on the 2019 proposed recipients.  

• David Rhoads
• Peggy Rusterholtz
• Craig Zale
• Mrs. Lee Ford

Past Service Tree Award recipients include: 

2015 Recipients 2016 Recipients 2017 Recipients 2018 Recipients 
First Lucas City Council Don Kendall Founders Day 

Cancelled 
Tonda Frazier 

Rebecca Mark Lee Bauer Tracy Matern 
Charlie Gaines 

Suzanne Christian 
Calton and Shirley 

Biggs Parker 

Attachments/Supporting Documentation 

1. Service Tree Nominations (sent under separate attachment)

Budget/Financial Impact 

The Service Tree program account 6211-445 has $3,000 budgeted in the 2018-19 budget. 



Item No. 09 
 
 
 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

February 7, 2019 
  

Recommendation  
 
NA 
 
Motion  
 
I make a motion to nominate the following individuals as Service Tree recipients for 2019:  
 
 



Item No. 10 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

February 7, 2019 
 

Requester: City Attorney Joe Gorfida  
 
Agenda Item Request  
 
Review Articles I and II of the City Charter and provide direction to the City Attorney regarding 
any proposed amendments to be considered as part of a Charter update.  
 
Background Information  
 
Section 12.03 of the City’s Home Rule Charter requires that the City Council review the charter 
at least once every five years to determine whether any amendments are necessary.  
 
City staff is also reviewing the Charter and providing updates to the City Attorney for 
compilation.  
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 
1. Articles I and II of the Home Rule Charter  
 
Budget/Financial Impact  
 
NA 
 
Recommendation  
  
NA 
 
Motion  
 
I make a motion to provide the following recommended updates to the Home Rule Charter:  

•  















Item No. 11 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

February 7, 2018 

 
Requester: Mayor Jim Olk 
 
Agenda Item Request  
 
Consider appointing a Grand Marshal for the 2019 Founders Day Parade. 
 
Background Information  
 
The 2019 Founders Day Celebration is scheduled for May 11, 2019 and will include the 
Founders Day parade.  As part of parade festivities, a Grand Marshal has been appointed in years 
past. 
 
In 2018, the City Council appointed Ron Grotti, Jim Kitchens, Roy Matheny, Tuck Minnett, 
Richard Morris, and Alan Storck as the Grand Marshals for the parade.  In 2017, the City 
Council approved moving the Founders Day Celebration to take place in the Spring.  In 2016, the 
City Council appointed Lee Bauer as the Grand Marshal, and in 2015 Founders Day Celebration 
was canceled due to inclement weather.  In 2014, State Representative Jodie Laubenberg was 
selected as the Grand Marshal. 
 
Staff is asking for direction on appointing a Grand Marshal for the 2019 Founders Day parade.  
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 
NA 
 
Budget/Financial Impact  
 
NA 
 
Recommendation  
 
NA 
 
Motion  
 
I make a motion to nominate ____________________ as the Grand Marshal for the 2019 
Founders Day parade. 
 
 
 



Item No. 12 
 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

February 07, 2019 
 

Requester: Building Inspector Scott DeJong   
 
Agenda Item Request  
 
Consider approving Resolution R 2019-02-00479 accepting the voluntary annexation petition 
submitted by Cary L. and Sharon C. Cobb for a tract of land located in the Montogomery Birch 
Survey, Abstract A0115, Tract 19, being all of 10.696 acres of land, otherwise known as 2020 
East Lucas Road.  
 
Background Information  
 
This property has an approved development agreement that requires annexation at the time of 
building permit application. Mr. Cobb submitted a voluntary annexation application along with 
his building permit application in compliance with the approved development agreement. 
 
This parcel is within the 1-mile ETJ boundary of the City. All documentation supports 
annexation for this property.  The metes and bounds have been verified, and the parcel is 
contiguous to the City.  
 
New legislation has passed that now requires annexation petitions to be formally accepted by the 
governing body.  
                   
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 
1. Resolution R 2019-02-00479 Accepting Voluntary Application  
2. Annexation Petition  
3. Development Agreement  
 
Budget/Financial Impact  
 
NA 
 
Recommendation  
 
Staff recommends accepting the Voluntary Annexation Petition.  
  



Item No. 12 
 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

February 07, 2019 
 

 
Motion  
 
I make a motion to approve/deny Resolution R 2019-02-00479 accepting the voluntary 
annexation petition submitted by Cary L. and Sharon C. Cobb for a tract of land located in the 
Montogomery Birch Survey, Abstract A0115, Tract 19, being all of 10.696 acres of land, 
otherwise known as 2020 East Lucas Road.  
 



 1 

RESOLUTION NO. R 2019-02-00479 
[Accepting Voluntary Annexation Petition of Cary L and Sharon C. Cobb] 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNSEL OF THE CITY OF 
LUCAS, TEXAS, ACCEPTING A VOLUNTARY ANNEXATION 
PETITION AND AUTHORIZING THE SETTING OF A DATE, 
TIME, AND PLACE FOR TWO (2) PUBLIC HEARINGS ON THE 
CONTEMPLATED ANNEXATION DESCRIBED IN EXHIBIT “A” 
AND DEPICTED IN EXHIBIT “B” ATTACHED HERETO AND 
MADE A PART HEREOF FOR ALL PURPOSES (“ANNEXATION 
AREA”), BY THE CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS; AUTHORIZING AND 
DIRECTING CITY STAFF TO PUBLISH NOTICE OF SUCH 
HEARINGS, WITH THE INSTITUTION OF THE ANNEXATION 
PROCEEDINGS, BY ADOPTION OF THE ANNEXATION 
ORDINANCE TO OCCUR AT A REGULAR CALLED CITY 
COUNCIL SESSION, AND TO PREPARE A SERVICE PLAN FOR 
THE ANNEXATION AREA; SAID ANNEXATION AREA BEING 
MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED IN EXHIBIT “A” AND 
DEPICTED IN EXHIBIT “B”; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Lucas has received a petition for voluntary annexations for the 
Annexation Area described and depicted in Exhibit “A” and Exhibit “B” from Cary L. and Sharon 
C. Cobb; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Lucas City Council believes it is in the best interest of the City to annex 
certain properties into the City of Lucas; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Annexation Area is adjacent to and within the extraterritorial jurisdiction 
of the City of Lucas, Texas, under the terms of Chapter 43 of the Texas Local Government Code; 
and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Annexation Area is economically and geographically within the natural 
growth pattern of the City of Lucas, Texas, and adaptable for future development under the master 
development plan for the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Annexation Area described and depicted in Exhibit “A” and Exhibit “B” 
is exempt from the Municipal Annexation Plan; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Lucas City Council wishes for all interested persons to be heard in a 
manner prescribed by state law before said annexation action is considered; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Lucas City Council wishes to inform all citizens and interested persons 
so that the impacts of said annexation is well understood by all interested parties prior to a final 
decision to annex the Annexation Area; 
 



 2 

 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LUCAS, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 SECTION 1. On the 21st day of February, 2019, at a regular called City Council meeting 
at 7:00 p.m., in the City Council Chamber, Lucas City Hall, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas 
75002-7651, the Lucas City Council will hold a public hearing giving all interested persons the 
right to appear and be heard on the proposed involuntary annexations by the City of Lucas, Texas, 
of the Annexation Area described and depicted in Exhibit “A” and Exhibit “B”. 
 
 SECTION 2. On the 21st day of February, 2019, at a regular called City Council meeting 
at 7:00 p.m., in the City Council Chamber, Lucas City Hall, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas 
75002-7651, the Lucas City Council will hold a second public hearing giving all interested persons 
the right to appear and be heard on the proposed involuntary annexations by the City of Lucas, 
Texas, of the Annexation Area described and depicted in Exhibit “A” and Exhibit “B”. 
 
 SECTION 3. On the 21st day of March, 2019, at 7:00 p.m., in the City Council Chamber, 
Lucas City Hall, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas 75002-7651, the Lucas City Council shall 
institute the annexation proceedings by adoption of the annexation ordinance and service plan for 
the Annexation Area described and depicted in Exhibit “A” and Exhibit “B”. 
 
 SECTION 4. City Staff is hereby authorized and directed to finalize the boundary 
description and land area total for the Annexation Area in preparation for publication in notices of 
public hearings. 
 
 SECTION 5. City Staff is hereby authorized and directed to cause notices of such public 
hearings to be published once for each hearing in a newspaper having general circulation in the 
City and in the above-described Annexation Area not more than twenty (20) days nor less than ten 
(10) days prior to the date of such public hearings, all in accordance with Chapter 43.052, Texas 
Local Government Code. 
 
 SECTION 6. City Staff is hereby directed to prepare a service plan for the proposed 
Annexation Area and make said service plan available for public review in the City Council 
Chamber, Lucas City Hall, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas 75002-7651, on or before the 
21st day of February, 2019. 
 
 SECTION 7. That this Resolution shall take effect immediately from and after its passage, 
and it is accordingly so resolved. 
 
 DULY RESOLVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Lucas, Texas, 
on the 7th day of February, 2019. 
 



 3 

ATTEST:      APPROVED:  
 
 
________________________________  ____________________________________ 
Stacy Henderson, City Secretary    Jim Olk, Mayor 
(01-31-2019:TM105800) 
 
 
 
  



 4 

EXHIBIT “A” 
Legal Description of Annexation Area 

 
 



 5 

EXHIBIT “A” 
Legal Description of Annexation Area 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 6 

EXHIBIT “B” 
Depiction of Annexation Area 

 























Item No. 13 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

February 7, 2019 
 

Requester: Mayor Jim Olk  
  City Manager Joni Clarke 
 
Agenda Item Request  
 
Discuss future transportation projects, the 2018 Collin County Bond Program and Park and Open 
Space funding with Collin County Commissioner Darrell Hale.  
 
Background Information  
 
A meeting has been scheduled with Commissioner Hale and the City of Lucas City Council for 
February 15, 2019 at 8:30 am.  He requested a meeting to discuss the City’s top needs for road 
infrastructure, safety and anything else Collin County can do to assist the City of Lucas. The City 
has also received information pertaining to the 2018 Collin County Bond Program Criteria for 
Eligibility and Ranking of City Thoroughfares.  As a past recipient of Collin County Park and 
Open Space funding, the City of Lucas would like to discuss the City’s trail network and its 
support of Trinity Trail Preservation Association and the Blackland Prairie Raptor Center.  
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 

1. Draft of Collin County Talking Points for meeting with Commissioner Hale 
2. Email dated January 31, 2019 from Collin County Director of Engineering regarding 

2018 Collin County Bond Program 
 
Budget/Financial Impact  
 
 NA 
 
Recommendation  
  
To assist the City Council in preparation for the meeting with Commissioner Hale, staff would 
like to develop a comprehensive list of items to be discussed as it relates to transportation 
projects.  This information will assist with the development of the agenda for the meeting on 
February 15, 2019 at 8:30 am at City Hall. 
 
Motion  
 
NA 



D R A F T 
 

Collin County Talking Points 
Meeting with Commissioner Darrell Hale 

Friday, February 15, 2019 at 8:30 am @ City Hall 
 
Transportation: 
 
Collin County Strategic Plan 

• City of Lucas position of support for the Lake Corridor alignment for the Limited-Access 
Roadway 

• 2018 Collin County Bond Program, Criteria for Eligibility and Ranking of City 
Thoroughfares 

 
State/County/City Future Projects 

• Country Club 
• Estates Parkway/Angel Parkway Intersection 
• West Lucas Road from Country Club to West Lucas/East Lucas Intersection 
• East Lucas/West Lucas Intersection 
• Discuss plans for future Collin County bond proposal transportation projects 

 
Update on City of Lucas Roadway Projects: 

• Country Club Road/Estates Parkway Intersection 
• Stinson Road South of Bridge 
• Blondy Jhune Road from West Bridge to Winningkoff 

 
Future City of Lucas Roadway Projects: 

• Stinson Road North of Bridge 
• Winningkoff Southern Section From East Lucas to Reverse Curve 

 
Parks & Open Space: 

• Support Trinity Trail Preservation Association and Protection of Trinity Trail 
• Support Blackland Prairie Raptor Center 

 
Existing Agreements: 

• Law Enforcement Agreement 
• Jail 
• Animal Control 
• Animal Shelter 
• Election 
• Fire 

 



 
From: Teresa Nelson <tnelson@co.collin.tx.us> On Behalf Of Clarence Daugherty 
Sent: Thursday, January 31, 2019 5:17 PM 
Subject: 2018 Collin County Bond Program, Criteria for Eligibility and Ranking of City Thoroughfares 
 
The Commissioners Court has allocated $60,000,000 for thoroughfare improvements in Collin County 
cities in the recently approved bond program. The plan is to provide $36,000,000 in May, 2020, and 
$24,000,000 in May, 2022. Attached is a chart of thoroughfare projects that the County is considering 
for County-managed projects, State-managed projects and City-managed projects. You will note that all 
of the projects, no matter which entity manages the projects are in one city or another, so this is noted 
on this chart. The Commissioners Court feels the County is already addressing transportation issues in 
cities with these projects, even before we get to distributing the 2018 Bond Funds directly to cities for 
projects.  
 
We plan to send out a call for projects to cities in the summer or fall of 2019. We anticipate that 
evaluation and funding will be complete in time to provide funding from the second year bond sale 
(May, 2020).  
 
Attached is the criteria that the Commissioners Court approved on December 17, 2018, for eligibility to 
be considered and for ranking (ranking will be finalized prior to Call for Projects). The Court also decided 
to require matching funds according the size of the city in order to more realistically address the cities’ 
ability to fund a project. The explanation of matching funds is also on the attached document. 
 
This information is provided to you so that your City can evaluate your needs and opportunities for 
thoroughfare improvements in light of the criteria that has been established. Please look carefully at the 
“Musts” as those are conditions that have to be met in order for a project to be considered/ranked. Our 
schedule was based on our assumption that cities may need time to satisfy those conditions.  
 
We will be happy to answer any questions that you have. We look forward in working with you on your 
projects. 
 

Clarence Daugherty, P.E. 
Collin County Director of Engineering 
4690 Community Ave., Suite 200 
McKinney, TX 75071 
Phone | 972.548.3728 
Mobile   972.816.7486  
cdaugherty@collincountytx.gov | www.co.collin.tx.us 
 
 
 

mailto:tnelson@co.collin.tx.us
mailto:cdaugherty@collincountytx.gov
http://www.co.collin.tx.us/


Item No. 14 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

February 7, 2019 
 

Requester: Mayor Jim Olk 
 
Agenda Item Request  
 
Executive Session:  
 
An Executive Session is not scheduled for this meeting.  
 
As authorized by Section 551.071 of the Texas Government Code, the City Council may 
convene into closed Executive Session for the purpose of seeking confidential legal advice from 
the City Attorney regarding any item on the agenda at any time during the meeting. This meeting 
is closed to the public as provided in the Texas Government Code.  
 
Background Information  
 
NA 
 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 
NA 
 
 
Budget/Financial Impact  
 
 NA 
 
 
Recommendation  
 
NA 
 
 
Motion  
 
NA 


	00 - 02-07-2019 agenda
	AGENDA
	City of Lucas
	City Council Meeting
	February 7, 2019
	7:00 PM
	City Hall – Council Chambers
	665 Country Club Road – Lucas, Texas
	Notice is hereby given that a meeting of the Lucas City Council will be held on Thursday, February 7, 2019 at 7:00 pm at Lucas City Hall, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas 75002-7651 at which time the following agenda will be discussed.  As authoriz...
	Call to Order
	Citizen Input
	Community Interest
	Consent Agenda
	Regular Agenda
	Executive Session Agenda
	Certification

	01 - Citizen Input
	Agenda Item Request
	Background Information
	Attachments/Supporting Documentation
	Budget/Financial Impact
	Recommendation
	Motion

	02 - Community Interest
	Agenda Item Request
	Background Information
	Attachments/Supporting Documentation
	Budget/Financial Impact
	Recommendation
	Motion

	02a - City of Lucas - 60 Anniversary
	03 - Consent Agenda cs
	Agenda Item Request
	Background Information
	Attachments/Supporting Documentation
	Budget/Financial Impact
	Recommendation
	Motion

	03a - 01-17-2019 cc minutes
	City of Lucas
	City Council Meeting
	January 17, 2019
	7:00 P.M.
	City Hall - 665 Country Club Road – Lucas Texas
	MINUTES
	Regular Agenda

	03b - Ordinance 2019-02-00888 Ordering General Election
	Section 2.  Pursuant to the Joint Election Agreement, the Elections Administrator of Collin County shall serve as Elections Administrator for the election.  Presiding Election Judges and Alternate Presiding Election Judges appointed to serve the auth...
	Section 4.  The entire City shall constitute one election precinct for this election and the Lucas Community Center located at 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas is hereby designated the polling place.  The election officers and maximum number of cl...
	Section 6.  This Ordinance shall take effect immediately upon its passage.

	03c - Ordinance 2019-02-00889 Ordering Special Election
	Section 2.  Pursuant to the Joint Election Agreement, the Elections Administrator of Collin County shall serve as Elections Administrator for the election.  Presiding Election Judges and Alternate Presiding Election Judges appointed to serve the auth...
	Section 4.  The entire City shall constitute one election precinct for this election and the Lucas Community Center located at 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas is hereby designated the polling place.  The election officers and maximum number of cl...
	Section 6.  This Ordinance shall take effect immediately upon its passage.
	APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Lucas this 7th day of February, 2019.

	03d - Election contract
	Table of Contents
	Exhibits

	04 - Allison Lane gate CS
	Agenda Item Request
	Background Information
	Attachments/Supporting Documentation
	Budget/Financial Impact
	Recommendation
	Motion

	04a - Allison Gate Location map
	Slide Number 1

	05 - Parker Road median opening and left turn lane cs
	Agenda Item Request
	Background Information
	Attachments/Supporting Documentation
	Budget/Financial Impact
	Recommendation
	Motion

	05a - Cimarron Trail Left Turn Lane Proposal
	05b - Cimarron TxDOT Email
	05c - Cimarron Sinacola
	06 - brockdale agreement cs
	Agenda Item Request
	Background Information
	Attachments/Supporting Documentation
	Budget/Financial Impact
	Recommendation
	Motion

	06a - Brockdale Agreement
	Article I  RECITALS
	Article II  BROCKDALE PARK ROAD
	As a condition to the issuance of a building permit after the Effective Date authorizing the construction of a residence on each lot, the permit applicant shall pay a roadway improvement fee of $4,400.00.  The $4,400.00 roadway improvement fee does no...

	Article III  ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS
	3.1 Recitals.  The recitals contained in this Agreement: (a) are true and correct as of the Effective Date; (b) form the basis upon which the Parties negotiated and entered into this Agreement; (c) are legislative findings of the City Council, and (d)...
	3.2 Term.  This Agreement shall expire upon the City's completion of the Road Improvements or on the fifteenth anniversary of the Effective Date, whichever occurs first.  If this Agreement expires upon completion of the Road Improvements, the Owner ma...
	3.3 Events of Default.  No Party shall be in default under this Agreement until notice of the alleged failure of such Party to perform has been given and until such Party has been given ten days to cure the alleged failure.
	3.4 REMEDIES.  IF A PARTY IS IN DEFAULT, THE AGGRIEVED PARTY MAY, AT ITS OPTION AND WITHOUT PREJUDICE TO ANY OTHER RIGHT OR REMEDY UNDER THIS AGREEMENT, SEEK ANY RELIEF AVAILABLE AT LAW OR IN EQUITY, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, AN ACTION UNDER THE ...
	3.5 Assignment.  The Owner has the right (from time to time without the consent of the City, but upon written notice to the City) to assign this Agreement, in whole or in part, and including any obligation, right, title, or interest of the Owner under...
	3.6 Binding Obligations.  Pursuant to the requirements of Section 212.172(f) of the Texas Local Government Code, this Agreement and all amendments hereto (including amendments to the Concept Plan) shall be recorded in the deed records of the County. I...
	3.7 Estoppel Certificates.  From time to time upon written request of the Owner, the City Manager will execute a written estoppel certificate identifying any obligations of the Owner under this Agreement that are in default or, with the giving of noti...
	3.8 Notices.  All  notices required or contemplated by this Agreement (or otherwise given in connection with this Agreement) shall be in writing, shall be signed by or on behalf of the Party giving the notice, and shall be effective as follows: (a) on...
	3.9 Interpretation.  The Parties acknowledge that each of them has been actively involved in negotiating this Agreement.  Accordingly, the rule of construction that any ambiguities are to be resolved against the drafting Party will not apply to interp...
	3.10 Authority and Enforceability.  The City represents and warrants that this Agreement has been approved by the City Council in accordance with all applicable public notice requirements (including, but not limited to, notices required by the Texas O...
	3.11 Entire Agreement; Severability.  This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the Parties regarding the subject matter of this Agreement.  This Agreement does not amend or waive any provision of that certain Settlement Agreement betwee...
	3.12 Applicable Law; Venue.  This Agreement is entered into under and pursuant to, and is to be construed and enforceable in accordance with, the laws of the State of Texas, and all obligations of the Parties are performable in Collin County.  Venue f...
	3.13 Non Waiver.  Any failure by a Party to insist upon strict performance by another Party of any material provision of this Agreement shall not be deemed a waiver thereof, and the Party shall have the right at any time thereafter to insist upon stri...
	3.14 No Third Party Beneficiaries.  This Agreement only inures to the benefit of, and may only be enforced by, the Parties.
	3.15 Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original and constitute one and the same instrument.
	3.16 Exhibit.  The following Exhibits are attached to this Agreement and incorporated herein for all purposes:


	07 - CIP Water cs
	Agenda Item Request
	Background Information
	Attachments/Supporting Documentation
	Budget/Financial Impact
	Recommendation
	Motion

	08 - Drainage cs
	Agenda Item Request
	Background Information
	Attachments/Supporting Documentation
	Budget/Financial Impact
	Recommendation
	Motion

	09 - Service Tree Award Nominations cs
	Agenda Item Request
	Background Information
	Attachments/Supporting Documentation
	Budget/Financial Impact
	Recommendation
	Motion

	10 - Charter Review I and II
	Agenda Item Request
	Background Information
	Attachments/Supporting Documentation
	Budget/Financial Impact
	Recommendation
	Motion

	10a - Charter Articles I and II
	11 - Founders day grand marshal cs
	Agenda Item Request
	Background Information
	Attachments/Supporting Documentation
	Budget/Financial Impact
	Recommendation
	Motion

	12 - Annexation petition
	Agenda Item Request
	Background Information
	Attachments/Supporting Documentation
	Budget/Financial Impact
	Recommendation
	Motion

	12a - Resolution 2019-02-00479 Accepting Cobb Voluntary Annexation
	12b - Cobb Petition
	13 - Collin County Meeting Agenda
	Agenda Item Request
	Background Information
	Attachments/Supporting Documentation
	Budget/Financial Impact
	Recommendation
	Motion

	13a - email from collin county 
	From: Teresa Nelson <30TUtnelson@co.collin.tx.usU30T> On Behalf Of Clarence Daugherty Sent: Thursday, January 31, 2019 5:17 PM Subject: 2018 Collin County Bond Program, Criteria for Eligibility and Ranking of City Thoroughfares

	13b - talking points
	14 - Executive Session
	Agenda Item Request
	Background Information
	Attachments/Supporting Documentation
	Budget/Financial Impact
	Recommendation
	Motion




